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Financial Summary
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For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t-BLEFE

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“FE\F ZFTAF ZF-FF ZFF | —%-=F
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
1,841,584 2,010,034 2,337,110 2,221,582 2,401,025
373,651 277,027 200,314 67,777 (83,263)
(40,138) (33,467) (22,780) (19,617) (16,106)
333,513 243,560 177,534 48,160 (99,369)
311,633 254,501 177,972 50,408 (93,319)
21,880 (1,970) (438) (2,248) (6,050)
333,513 252,531 177,534 48,160 (99,369)
At 31 December
R+=A=+-H
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
“FEN\F ZFENF ZF-FF —F—F | 28--F
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
FEr FEr FET FEr FET
1,419,306 2,074,163 2,421,849 2,355,053 = 2,335,316
(619,288) (633,529) (735,209) (515,966) (630,034)
800,018 1,440,634 1,686,640 1,839,087 = 1,705,282
787,148 1439440 1,683,699 1,834,635 = 1,702,204
12,870 1,194 2,941 4,452 3,078
800,018 1,440,634 1,686,640 1,839,087 = 1,705,282
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Financial Summary

BB E
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE AT 2R &R
COMPANY
2012 2011
—E—_F —_E——4%
HK$000 HK$000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries BB BfERS 798,043 798,043
Current assets REEE
Prepayments T FRIE 449 449
Amounts due from subsidiaries I EUNGIE €| 267,911 285,135
Bank balances RITEE R 1,820 668
270,180 286,252
Current liabilities REBEE
Derivative financial instruments TEE€mIA 30,857 9,600
Other payables FAth FE - BR X 3,071 2,954
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR EUNGIE & 92,511 78,523
Tax payable FEBTIIR 5,503 5,503
Redeemable convertible preferred shares ~ AJ & [B] A] 5 #248  i% 64,961 —
196,903 96,580
Net current assets REBEEFH 73,277 189,672
871,320 987,715
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital A% A 8,455 8,415
Reserves i 862,865 915,781
871,320 924,196
Non-current liability FREBEE
Redeemable convertible preferred shares A] BB 8] A (B o i — 63,519
871,320 987,715

5) / R E B ERA A /:$—1$Eﬁf§



Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Inspur International
Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to announce the
financial report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2012.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

During the year, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$2,401,025,000 (2011: HK$2,221,582,000), representing
an increase of 8.08% as compared with last year. Net loss
attributable to shareholders for the year was approximately
HK$93,319,000 (2011: profit of HK$50,408,000), representing
a significant decrease as compared with last year. Net loss
for the year after deducting a one-off goodwill impairment
loss of HK$63,915,000 and a preference share fair value loss
of HK$21,257,000 was approximately HK$8,147,000. Basic
and diluted loss per share was HK$2.22 cents (2011: profit of
HK$1.31 cents) and HK$2.22 cents (2011: profit of HK$1.30
cents) respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2012, the global economy was still under recovery. Mainland
China was faced with the appreciation of Renminbi and rising
inflation, which also had a certain impact on the overall business
environment. The software and service business maintained
a certain degree of boom and the size of the overall market
continue to expand. However, competition in the entire industry
was keen. All companies faced pressures from increasing costs.
Although the Company took measures such as controlling
costs and expenditure and increasing the standardization
level of software products, it failed to transfer the increased
costs of major products to customers, leading to shrinkage in
the Company’s profit margin. It was a pity that the Company
recorded a loss for the first time since its listing despite the full
efforts made by the management.
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In 2013, the Company will refine the strategy of focusing on
the development of businesses with technical advantages,
and continue to pursue active market expansion strategies, in
order to realize rapid growth in our business. Realizing rapid
development by focusing on strengthen the establishment
in regions, consolidate the existing regions, and undertake
merger and acquisition in weak regions; as well as develop
with partners and establish more sales channel. The Company
will enhance the function of business lines as sales generator,
through establish the mechanism of business planning-driven
overall budget, which not only boost our sales but also pull
the product demand. In respect of products, we will insist
on the development model with the combination of self-
innovation and external co-operation, speed up the launch
of products, continue to consolidate existing products, and
self-develop the products of next generation. We will pursue
new business growth point by innovate new cloud computing
service model and promote enterprises to use cloud computing.
The Company will further enhance the incentive mechanism,
which improve the objectives and responsibilities system with
the core of combination with responsibility, right and interest,
so as to promote the enthusiasm of our staffs. It is believed
with a gradual improvement in the economic environment,
the software and service business will maintain a relatively
fast growth speed. The Company will continue to adjust its
development strategy and persist in change and continue to
transform into a supplier of cloud computing SaaS products
and solution services. The Company insisted on the strategy
of focusing on the development of businesses with technical
advantages. The Company aims to restructure its business
model so as to swiftly reverse the loss position and generate
better returns for our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to take this
opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation
to our shareholders and staff for their continued supports and
valuable contributions during the year.

Wang Xingshan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$2,401,025,000 (2011: HK$2,221,582,000)
from its businesses, representing an increase of approximately

8.08% as compared with last year.

(1

(2)

Revenue

During the year, total revenue of the Group maintained
a mild increment. The Group recorded a revenue
of HK$2,401,025,000 (2011: HK$2,221,582,000)
representing an increase of 8.08% as compared with
last year. The increase was mainly attributable to
increase in sales of IT components, the revenue from
sales of IT components was HK$1,239,465,000 (2011:
HK$963,443,000) representing an increase of 28.65% as
compared with prior year, but the revenue of IT services
was recorded a decrease of 7.68% as compared with last
year.

During the year, the revenue of IT services was
HK$1,161,560,000 (2011: HK$1,258,139,000). The
revenue of software development and solution in
IT service for the year was HK$973,105,000 (2011:
HK$1,133,662,000), representing a decrease of 14.16% as
compared with last year;On the other hand, the software
outsourcing business in IT service was HK$188,455,000
(2011: HK$124,477,000), representing an increase of
51.40% as compared with last year. The revenue of sales
of IT peripherals and software was HK$480,953,000
(2011: HK$675,803,000), representing a decrease of
28.83% as compared with last year; but the revenue
of software development was HK$492,152,000 (2011:
HK$457,859,000), representing an increase of 7.49% as
compared with last year.

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group was HK$507,170,000 for the
year (2011: HK$528,094,000), representing a decrease
of 3.96% as compared with last year. The Group's
consolidated gross profit margin for the year decreased
by 2.65% to 21.12% (2011: 23.77%). The year-to-year
decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to increase
in the proportion of low-margin sales of IT components.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Selling and distribution cost and administrative
expenses

During the year, selling and distribution cost and
administrative expenses amounted to HK$589,284,000
(2011: HK$517,693,000), representing an increase of
13.83% as compared with last year. The increase was
mainly due to the increase in research and development
("R&D") costs and marketing expenses. (In particular,
the staff cost of the Group overall increased significantly
which was mainly due to recruitment of more competent
professionals in R&D and marketing aiming to strengthen
the competitiveness of the Group.)

Other income and other gains and losses

During the year, the other income and other gains and
losses decreased from HK$88,025,000 in year 2011 to
HK$69,982,000 in current year which was mainly due
to fair value charge in conversion option derivatives
embedded in redeemable convertible preferred share was
HK$21,257,000 (2011: loss arising from modification of
the terms of redeemable convertible preferred share was
HK$9,600,000) and a decrease of HK$13,955,000 in
government subsidies and grants as compared with last
year.

Profit attributable to shareholders

Net loss attributable to shareholders for the year was
approximately HK$93,319,000 (2011: Profit attributable
to shareholders was HK$50,408,000), representing
a decrease of 285% as compared with last year. The
decrease was primarily due to: (a) a sharp increment of
HK$71,591,000 in administrative and distribution costs
which were mainly contribute by increase in research
and development costs, marketing expenses and human
resources expenses; (b) During the year, the impairment
loss on goodwill amount to approximately HK$63,915,000
(2011: Nil). Our management recognised the full
impairment on goodwill arising in the acquisition of Inspur
Communication and Digital media business as a result
of the much lower-than-expected profit contribution in
current year and future economic benefits. The lower-than-
expected profit contribution was due to the unexpected

(3)

(4)

(5)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

(6)

keen competition for technician and staff with advance
technology knowledge which drive up their salaries
drastically and change of suppliers’ selection criteria by
certain major customers, tender of certain orders were
lost while the orders obtained were completed at a lower
margin; (c) keen competition in the market leading to the
falling down of gross profit by HK$20,924,000.

Basic and diluted loss per share were HK2.22 cents (2011:
earnings per share were HK1.31 cents) and HK2.22 cents
(2011: earnings per share were HK1.30 cents) respectively.

Financial resources and liquidity

As at 31 December 2012, shareholder’s equity of the
Group amounted to HK$1,702,204,000 (31 December
2011: HK$1,834,635,000). Current assets amounted
to HK$1,866,700,000, of which HK$1,184,761,000
was bank deposits and cash balance which were mainly
denominated in Renminbi.

Current liabilities, including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accrued expenses amounted to
HK$594,159,000. The Group's current assets were around
3.14 times over its current liabilities (31 December 2011:
4.42times).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no bank
borrowings.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

All of the Group's purchase and sales are mainly denominated in
United States Dollars and Renminbi. The Group has not used any

derivative instrument to hedge against its currency exposures.

The Directors believe that with its sound financial position, the

Group is able to meet its foreign exchange liabilities as and

when they become due.

CONTINGENT LIABILIITES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (31 December 2011: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CAPTIAL STRUCTURE

The Group finances its operations mainly from shareholder
equity, internal generated funds in year 2012.

On 24 September 2009, the Company entered into a
supplementary deed (“Supplementary Deed”) with the holder
of Preferred Shares, pursuant to which the Company and the
holder of Preferred Shares have agreed that during the period
from 1 October 2009 to 30 September 2011, a dividend at
an annual rate of 6% shall be paid to the holders of Preferred
Shares on a quarterly basis, (i) as to one third (1/3) thereof (i.e.
representing 2% per annum) by cash; and (i) as to two-thirds
(2/3) thereof (i.e. representing 4% per annum) by the allotment
of additional Preferred Shares (“Scrip Dividend”) in such number
to be calculated by dividing the amount of Scrip Dividend by
the issue price of scrip share. The issue price of scrip share shall
be the average closing price of the Ordinary Shares as shown
on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange for the 10
consecutive trading days immediately prior to such dividend
payment date. Each scrip share is convertible into one Ordinary
Share. Save for the number of Ordinary Shares to be converted,
the scrip shares rank para passu with Preferred Shares in all
respects. Further details regarding the terms of the issue of scrip
shares to the holders of Preferred Shares was set out in the
circular of the Company dated 15 October 2009.

On 31 October 2011, the Company entered into a supplementary
deed (“Supplementary Deed”) with the holder of Preferred Shares,
pursuant to which the Company and the holder of Preferred
Shares have agreed that the maturity date of the preferred shares
will extend for a further period of two years commencing on 8
December 2011, a dividend at an annual rate of 9% shall be paid
to the holder of Preferred Shares on a quarterly basis by cash.
Further details regarding the terms of the Preferred Shares was set
out in the circular of the Company dated 15 November 2011.

On 1 November 2011, the Company have issued 415,873,000
ordinary shares pursuant to the conversion of 83,174,600 Preferred
Shares. On 8 December 2011, the Company have redeemed
95,056,686 Preferred Shares pursuant to redemption notice.

On 31 December 2012, the principal amount of Preferred Shares was
HK$63,518,905. Micsrosoft is the holder of 72,859,049 Preferred
Shares which can be converted into 297,052,141 ordinary shares.

11
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DN

ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSAL

In December 2011, the Company, through Inspur Shandong
Electronic Information Company Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, set up a jointly controlled entity,
Shandong Inspur Cloud Computing Industry Investment Co.,
Ltd ("IERRHEEEAEEXIREARAR"), with another
two related companies. The total contribution of the Group was
RMB100,000,000 , representing 33.33% equity interest of the
entity. All contribution has been made during the year ended 31
December 2011.

In January 2012, the Group dispose of the total equity of
Shandong Inspur E-Government Software Limited to a related
company at a consideration of RMB23,000,000.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had 3,785 employees
(2011: 3,877).

Total employee remuneration, including directors’ remuneration
and mandatory provident fund contributions, amounted
to approximately HK$510,280,000 (2011: approximately
HK$397,015,000).

According to a comprehensive remuneration policy, which was
formulated by the Group and reviewed by the management,
employees are remunerated based on their performance and
experience. On top of basic salaries, discretionary bonus and
share options may be granted to eligible employees with
reference to the Group's and the employee’s performance.
In addition, the Group provides mandatory provident fund,
medical and insurance schemes for employees. The Group also
offers continuous education and training programmes to the
management and other employees to enhance their skills and
knowledge.

On 10 December 2010, 60.10 million options granted under
2008 Share Option Scheme to our senior management and top
R&D employers to encourage our staff create and share value
without shareholders.

By the end of year, 60,100,000 options were vested but not
exercised.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2012, none of the Group’s assets was
pledged (31 December 201 1: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2012, the global economy was in the recovery position and
mainland China was faced with the appreciation of RMB and
rising inflation. These factors affected the overall operation
environment. The demand of IT services from major enterprises
in China increased, in particular the state-owned enterprises.
Pursuant to its specialized technology development strategy, the
Group has been developing itself into a SaaS cloud computing
service provider. By leveraging on its advantages in the industry,
innovative technology products of cloud computing were
introduced to increase the market share. More investment was
made in product development to optimize the product portfolio
and to enhance the core competitiveness of the Group so as to
consolidate its position in the niche market of cloud computing.

1. IT services business

The IT services business of the Group covers various
sectors, including corporate governance and control,
telecommunication, pharmaceuticals, infrastructure,
taxation and finance etc. Mainly engaged in software
and related services as well as embedded systems, the
Company obtained integrated IT services range from
applications, IT consultancy, assembling of systems,
operation maintenance, outsourcing and intelligent
terminal products.

IT services business mainly includes:

(1) Software and related services

In 2012, the Company implemented its strategy
of professionalism at full steam. It enhanced the
research and implementation of various technologies,
such as cloud computing for corporate customers,
XBRL and internal control system. The Group
strengthened its cooperation with academic
institutions in technology research to enhance the
competitiveness of its produces.
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In 2012, Inspur ERP stepping up its efforts in
expanding into cloud computing, combined cloud
computing with the supervision and control of
the Group and achieved steady growth in core
operations through the two-pronged strategy of
market development and research and development.

In terms of market development, the Company
deepened its high-end advantages. The Company
continued to focus on dominant sectors such as
conglomerates, military, reserve, construction,
shipping, pharmaceutical and coal, drove industry
replication through strengthening precision
marketing and case marketing. It signed agreements
in succession with the top 100 enterprises in China
such as China Aerospace Science and Technology,
Aviation Industry Corporation of China, China
South Industries (B X288 ), Commercial
Aircraft Corporation of China, China Grain Reserves,
Dalian Shipbuilding and China Coal Technology &
Engineering Group, also including leading domestic
private enterprises in the industry such as Changlin
Group and Wanda Group, to further reinforce its
cooperation with large conglomerates. As a result,
the market share in respect of medium and large
customers increased further. Marketing was focused
on case marketing and precision marketing. In
2012,the Company enhanced the promotion of
successful cases to major customers and established
major customers in selected target industries and
major areas. As such, the Company has established
a group of major customers with comprehensive
applications, high values and characteristic
businesses. Dozens of large industry seminars were
held in major areas such as Hangzhou, Zhengzhou,
Beijing, Wuhan, Shanghai and Xi‘an to support the
sales to major industries and regions and vigorously
consolidate its high-end market advantages.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In terms of product research and development, the
Company focused on two “accelerated breakthroughs”:
One was to accelerate the breakthrough in the
clouding upgrade of products and provide “cloud
+ end” comprehensive private cloud solutions for
conglomerates. The Company launched the Inspur
management software flagship product GS6.0 package
to fully support cloud computing, covering 2,375
function points under 99 product modules in 13 major
areas of the supervision and control, which strongly
supported the information technology upgrade of
“Group supervision and control transferring from
focusing on financial supervision and control to focusing
on both financial and business supervision and control”
and created new market opportunities such as Group
ERP with “supply chain, production and cost” as the
core, management accounting with “cost, budget”
as the core and human resources management. In
addition, the Company also successively launched
the CSP, CEPP and CRM series of cloud product,
strengthened new characteristics such as cloud products,
mobile applications and e-commerce and actively
launched services such as IT planning and application
integration using cloud computing technology. Second
was to accelerate the breakthrough in management
software transformation and upgrade to further increase
product competitiveness and high-end market position.
Combining with the development trend of the Group's
supervision and control model changing from financial
supervision and control to strategic supervision and
control, with management accounting as the starting
point and with overall budget, strategic cost, decision
making forecast and performance management
as the main content, the Company successively
completed the research and development of new
products such as production and manufacturing, risk
internal control, CRM, master data management and
mobile applications, to provide more comprehensive
solutions, management tools and important support
for conglomerates which were in the transition stage
during the cloud era and satisfy the needs of enterprises
in sophisticated management. Meanwhile, the
Company undertook such major projects as the state’s
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863 key project of “Research and Development and
Application of an Intensive Operation and Management
Platform for Discrete Conglomerates” and “Cloud
Manufacturing Service Platform Key Technology” with
a focus on integrating production, learning, research
and application, which would provide important
technological support for the manufacturing industry
in China to transform from conventional production
enterprises to service enterprises characterized by
“technology+management+service”.

In 2012, the Company faced great difficulties in the
communication industry. On one hand, this was due
to measures taken by telecommunication operators,
which were its major customers, to control expenses.
On the other hand, the standardization level of
the Company’s software products was yet to be
raised. Together with high product costs, the
competiveness of products was directly affected. In
2013, investment in the communication industry
will continue to maintain growth. LTE is expected
to be launched on a large scale. The launch of LTE
will bring about a change in the OSS support model.
The network management system will usher in a
qualitative change and transformation. The business
position of OSS will become increasingly important.

In the future, the Company will further develop its
cloud computing business and introduce SaaS products
and services. The Company will also explore market
opportunities in IT planning and integrated application
for business cloud computing technology. The
Company will continue to participate in the formulation
of national, local and industrial standards. The Company
will capitalize the opportunities in cloud computing
market and develop itself into a leading company in
the market by technology innovation with its internal
resources. Full-service competition among operators has
imposed higher requirements on the support capability
of OSS. Currently, it is developing towards new
generation OSS. The technological and construction
capabilities of OSS will be further improved.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Embedded systems and related services

In terms of tax collection equipment, affected by the
replacement of business tax with value-added tax
and the mode of online billing, no provinces invited
tenders. As a result, the Company's sales dropped
drastically. As online billing has been increasingly
common, the traditional commercial tax collection
machine market continued to decline. It is expected
the sales of tax collection equipment will continue to
decline in the future.

In respect of the automatic rate-paying machine
("ARM") market, the Company further optimized
and upgraded the functions of ARM. The ARM was
used by the national and regional authorities in 30
provinces and 15 prefectures. In future, with the
implementation of the State Administration’s direct
procurement plan and popularization, automatic rate-
paying machines will be understood and recognized
by more and more tax payers and tax authorities. We
will further optimize the product mix and functions
of our ARM products and reduce our costs to cope
with price competition from our competitors. For
the national tax market, the Company is striving to
basically cover the whole country. The coverage of
the local tax market and the number of halls installed
with the machine will also be increased significantly,
thereby achieving large-scale promotion in the local
tax market.

In 2012, in respect of the automatic financial
terminal market, the Company continued to develop
new products in addition to expanding the traditional
automatic terminal market. The Company launched
integrated solutions for channel services, providing
customers with comprehensive solutions for
various cooperative channels which cover different
subdivisions of bank outlets, networks of off-bank
service and various banking enterprises. At present,
the development of banking and medical automatic
terminals, automatic card-issuing machines and
automatic ticketing machines under the solution has
completed and were entered into mass production,
while the development of automatic front desk
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(3)

machines and low desk cash registers ({£i&E3R &
i 49#) has been completed. As for the market,
apart from continuing to develop the conventional
automatic terminal market, the Company was active
in developing the new product market. Banking and
medical products were shortlisted by the head office
of Bank of China and were sold to the Agricultural
Bank and Construction Bank. At present, banking
and medical products have achieved successful
progress in dozens of cases. The batch promotion
of automatic ticketing machine in various branches
of Construction Bank such as Beijing Branch and
Yunnan Branch was successful, and the automatic
card issuing machine was shortlisted by the head
office of Bank of China and was sold to more than10
branches. The Company aims to further enhance
its competitiveness and profitability in the financial
market through exploration of existing customers
and launching of innovative products.

Software outsourcing business

In respect of the software outsourcing business,
the Group has mainly provided the IT outsourcing
("ITO") services (such as system application
development, embedded system development,
and quality assurance and testing), the business
process outsourcing (“BPO") services (such as data
processing, operation and maintenance outsourcing
and call center) as well as the product development
outsourcing (“PDO") services (such as development
of software products, semi-finished parts and
platform) for top 500 corporations and outstanding
IT companies in the world. Affected by the general
environment of a slow global economic recovery,
the international offshore will further shrink. To
service outsourcing enterprises in China, the U.S.
and European markets will shrink substantially
with the re-emergence of trade protectionism
and the trend of restarting insourcing. As for the
market of outsourcing to Japan, the Japanese
economy experienced a sharp decline in recent
year. The impact of political factors such as the
clash over Diaoyu Islands between China and
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Japan will gradually emerge after 2013. In recent
years, with the outsourcing driving factor changing
from “cost arbitrage” to “strategic cooperation”
and the development of the “onsite & offshore”
delivery model, orders received from overseas and
overseas mergers and acquisitions by Chinese service
outsourcing enterprises have been increasing.
However, the road is not flat. Because of the
complicated international political situation and the
strengthening of protectionism by western countries,
the obstacles and investment risks facing Chinese
service outsourcing enterprises have increased,
creating adverse impacts for the development of
offshore markets.

In 2012, the Company maintained good relations
and cooperation with customers including NTT
DATA, FITEC and KNT, and enhanced the strategic
cooperation with domestic telecommunication
operators such as China Mobile and ChinaUnicom. In
addition, the Company strengthened its investment
in local outsourcing market of United States and
recruited more on-site staffs in the headquarter of
Microsoft in Seattle. The outsourcing business of
the Company increased by over 51.4% as compared
to the corresponding period last year, which mainly
attributable to the growth of Microsoft and domestic
businesses.

With the continued development of new technology,
emerging service outsourcing market segments will
continue to emerge in China. Sectors such as cloud
computing, the Internet of things, e-commerce,
mobile Internet, big data and business analysis will
bring more new business opportunities.

IT components trading

IT component trading business recorded turnover of
approximately HK$1,239,465,000 accounting for 51.62%
(2011: 43.37%) of the total turnover. The Company
will maintain the stable development of IT components
business through enlarging its customer base and sales
channels.
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BUSINESS PLANNING

In 2013, the Company will continue to pursue active market
expansion strategies. The Company will further increase the
investment in the market and establish more sales channels,
strategically expand in provincial cities and major cities by
stationing more employees in the cities and further improve
the sales staff incentive mechanism. The Company will further
expand into the industrial market to ensure breakthroughs in
dominant industries such as military, construction and reserve.
While establishing a business plan-driven overall budget
mechanism, the Company will strengthen its business lines
as a marketing engine. The Company will further continue
to invest in research and development, stabilize its existing
products, develop new products based on the requirements
cloud technology, and strengthen the overall capabilities of
solutions to innovate its business model and services model. By
enhancing its external cooperation, merger and acquisition, the
Company will proactively face various challenges and strive for
the dominant position in the relevant field of cloud computing.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Xingshan, aged 48, is entitled to government grants
from the State Council of the People’s Republic of China,
is the chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer
("CEQ"). Mr. Wang graduated in Xian Jiaotong University with
a Master degree in computer and maths sciences in 1987. In
early 1990, Mr. Wang as a visiting scholar conducted research
relating to corporate management and software engineering
in Japan Productivity Center. Mr. Wang joined the Inspur
Group in 1987, he had worked in several departments of
Inspur Group. Currently, he is the Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Inspur Group. Mr. Wang has attained over
20 years’ experience in the operation and management of the
IT industry in the mainland China, in particularly in the field of
software and IT service, and has been granted several awards
at national and provincial level and was awarded one of the
top ten China’s software industry leader in 2002. He is also the
Executive director of China Software Industry Association, and
the vice executive president of China’s Manufacture Information
Engineering of China, qualified assessor of the National 863
Program, the adjunct professor of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology and Shandong University.

Mr. Chen Dongfeng, aged 49, is the senior engineer. Mr. Chen
graduated from Shandong Industry University with a Bachelor
degree in computer science in 1984. Mr Chen joined the Inspur
Group in 1984, he had worked in several departments of the
Inspur Group. Currently, he is the General Manager of Inspur
Communication Information System Limited and a director of
a number of subsidiaries of the Inspur Group. Mr. Chen has
attained over 25 years' experience in the IT industry in the
mainland China, in particularly in the field of communication,
he was responsible for managing the joint venture between the
Group and Ericsson as well as the joint venture between the
Group and LG.
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Mr. Sun Chengtong, aged 48, is the deputy general manager of
Inspur International and general manager of Inspur (Shandong)
Electronic Information Company Limited. He is a senior engineer.
He gained his Master Degree from the School of Business
Administration of Shandong University. Mr. Sun worked in Bank
of China in the 1990s and was responsible for the development
of banking software and the management of banking business.
He joined the Inspur Group in 2000. Mr. Sun has over 20
years experience in the financial IT industry of the PRC. He had
organised and participated in various important banking software
development projects. Mr. Wu had extensive experience in the
financial IT sector and was awarded the Second Prize for Excellent
Computer Application in Shandong Province (LI & 5t & # & A
BEKR=F ). Mr. Sun was appointed as an executive director
with effect from 1 April 2012.

Mr. Dong Hailong, aged 35, is in charge of Trading of IT
components department. Mr. Dong graduated from Southwest
Jiaotong University with a Bachelor degree in Telecommunication
Engineering in 1999. Mr. Dong joined the Company in 2002.

Mr. Zhang Tigin, aged 62, an independent non-executive Director,
a professor, who was awarded a doctorate degree in Management
Study, is entitled to government grants from the State Council of
the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Zhang had been a deputy party
secretary of vice-counselor of Shandong Industry University and a
standing member of CPC committee and vice-counselor of Shandong
University, a party committee secretary of Shandong Economic
University and a PhD students’ instructor of Shandong University.
Mr. Zhang is an expert and over thirty years experienced in human
resources management and corporate restructuring and studies in the
field, who has received various awards from the State and provincial
government. Mr Zhang also has various engagements, including,
principal expert of the Research Institute of Human Resources
Development of Shandong* (ILER & AT & EE R EM),
honorable vice chairman of China Natural Dialectics Institute* (47 &
SRIHE AT FE®), chairman of Shandong Natural Dialectics Institute*
(LR B ARIEAMFLE), executive deputy chairman of Shandong
Higher Education Management Science Institute* (L& &EH
BEIERIEBES), deputy chairman of Shandong Productivity
Coundil* (LE&AAEHEE). He is also an independent director of
Luxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd* (B{SRIEIEEERMNH AR
72A]), a company listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis, aged 54, an independent non-
executive Director, graduated from University of Toronto,
Canada in 1981 with bachelor’s degree in arts majoring in
economics and commerce and has obtained a master of business
administration degree from The Chinese University of Hong
Kong in 1987. He has over 20 years of banking, investment,
corporate finance and securities dealing experience gained by
working as a senior executive in a number of listed local and PRC
financial services companies. Mr. Wong is also an independent
nonexecutive director of a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Ms. Dai Ruimin (&%), aged 62, an independent non-executive
Director, was formerly a vice-director of the Information Center
of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of PRC.
Currently Ms. Dai was a member the Advisory Committee of
the Chinese Academy of Governance (“BRITIHEE FIK
BEKRKEZEE") and a member ofthe Committee of National
Standardization of Classification and Code of Disciplines (“E
KOMBEREEE(ZES"”). Ms. Dai commenced to work in
the area of personnel infomatisation in the 1980s, and she was
responsible for the general design and layout of the country’s
personnel management information system, the development
of the country’s personnel system software, the building of
personnel system database and civil service database, and the
development of information security of human resource and
social security system. Ms. Dai has over 30 years’ experience in
the area of construction of human resource information system
and was awarded the first China Standards Innovation and
Contribution Award.

Mr. Samuel Y. Shen (“Mr. Shen”), aged 48, a non-executive
Director, holds a Master’s degree in Computer Science from
University of California, Santa Barbara. Currently Mr. Shen is the
chief operation officer of Microsoft Asia-Pacific Research and
Development Group. As the senior leader of Microsoft in the
region, Mr. Shen is in charge of the strategy and direction for
Microsoft global development in Asia Pacific. Additionally, he
oversees Microsoft Cloud related development and deployment
in China as well as manages the joint-development ecosystem
efforts. Mr. Shen has a solid technical background and rich
experience in business operation and management. Mr. Shen
served as an independent non-executive director of Pansoft
Company Limited (a company listed on NASDAQ Stock Market
(Stock ticker: PSOF)).
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

EEREAREEEMHE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Wing, aged 42, company secretary of the Company.
She is a member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants respectively. Prior to joining our company, Ms.
Chan served as a company secretary, authorized representative,
qualified accountant, chief financial officer and director of a
company listing on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Zoubo, aged 34, is the chief financial controller, authorised
representative and joint company secretary. Mr. Zou was
graduated from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
with a bachelor degree in management and law in 2001. Mr.
Zou joined the Group in 2006.

Mr. Wu Lizhong, aged 45, is the deputy general manager of
Inspur International and general manager of Shandong Inspur
Business System Company Limited. He is a senior economist.
He graduated from the College of Business and Economics
of Australian National University with a Master Degree in
Business Management. Before joining the Inspur Group in
1994, Mr. Wu had worked in several subsidiaries of the Group
and acted as director of certain subsidiaries. Mr. Wu is an
expert in computerisation of tax management and is the vice-
chairman of the Tax Control Device Committee of the China
Computer Industry Association(f BT E#IBERIZRED
). His has won various national and provincial awards for his
achievements.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2012.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices
are essential for effective management and enhancement of
shareholders’ value and investors’ confidence.

The Company has taken a proactive approach in strengthening
corporate governance practices, increasing transparency and
sustaining accountability to shareholders through effective
internal control.

THE BOARD

The Company has adopted and complied with the principles set
out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the "CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 (for Main Board) of the Listing
Rules. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with all the code provision set out in the CG Code throughout
the year ended 31 December 2012 with the exception of:
(@) Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
Mr. Wang Xingshan is both the Chairman and CEO of the
Company. This structure does not comply with code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board considers that vesting the
roles of Chairman and CEO in the same person facilitates the
execution of the Company’s business strategies and maximizes
the effectiveness of its operation. (b) Under code provision A.6.7
of the CG Code, independent non-executive directors and other
non-executive directors should also attend general meetings and
develop a balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Zhang Tigin, Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis and Ms. Dai Ruimin
(both being independent non-executive Directors) were unable
to attend the annual general meeting as they were obliged to be
away for business trips. The Company will improve its meeting
scheduling and arrangement in order to ensure full compliance
with Code A.6.7 in future.

The Board will continue to enhance the corporate governance
standards and practices of the Company as benefiting the
conduct and growth of its business and to regularly review
such standards and practices to ensure that they comply with
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERBRE

statutory and professional standards and align with the latest
developments. The key corporate governance principles and
practices are as follows:

The Board is responsible for establishing policies, strategies and
plans, providing leadership in creating value and overseeing the
Company's financial performance, evaluating the performance
of management on behalf of the shareholders. Directors are
charged with the task of promoting the success of the Company
and making the best interest of the Company. The day-to-day
management, administration and operation of the Company
are in charge by the executive directors and senior management
under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The Board has
also delegated various responsibilities to the Board Committees.
Further details of these committees are set out in this report.

The Board meets and discusses on regular basis when required
on the activities and development in the business of the Group.
During the financial year ended 31 December 2012, the Board
held three meetings. The attendance of the directors at the
board meetings are as follows:

Directors’ attendance at Board meetings

Directors Number of attendance
Mr. Sun Pishu* 1Al
Mr. Meng Xiang Xu* 11
Mr. Wang Xingshan 3/3
Mr. Chan Dongfeng 3/3
Mr. Sun Chengtong 172
Mr. Dong Hailong 3/3
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis 2/3
Mr. Zhang Tigin 3/3
Ms. Dairuin* 2/2
Mr. Samuel Y. Shen* 11

* Mr. Sun Pishu and Mr. Meng Xiang Xu resigned on 1 April 2012.
One Board meeting of the company were held during the period
prior to his resignation.

* Ms. Dai Ruimin was appointed on 1 April 2012. Twice Board
meeting of the company were held during the period after her
appointment.

* Mr. Samuel Y. Shen was appointed on 1 September 2012. One
Board meeting of the company were held during the period after
her appointment.
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Corporate Governance Report

Board Minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company and are sent to the Directors for records and are open
for inspection by the Directors.

Directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring compliance with Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations. Any director
may request independent professional advice in appreciate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon reasonable
request made to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(IICEOII)

Mr. Wang Xingshan is both the Chairman and CEO of the
Company. He has executive responsibilities and provides
leadership to the Board so that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. Also,he is
daily operational decisions and performance of management of
the Group. The Board also comprises Independent Non-Executive
Directors who bring strong independent judgment, knowledge
and experience to the Board. As noted below, all the Audit
Committee members are Independent Non-Executive Directors.
This structure is to ensure a sufficient balance of power and
authority in place within the Group.

BOARD COMPOSITION

Now the Board comprises four Executive Directors, being Mr.
Wang Xingshan, Mr. Chen Dongfeng, Mr. Sun chengtong, and
Mr. Dong Hailong and Non-Executive Director Samuel Y Shen
and three Independent Non-Executive Directors, being Mr.
Zhang TiQin, Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis and Ms. Dai Ruimin.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. Such balanced
board composition is formed to ensure strong independence
exists across the Board. The biographies of the Directors are set
out in Directors and Senior Management Profile section to the
annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise,
experience and qualifications.
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The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from the three Independent Non-Executive
Directors in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Main Board
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
concluded that all the Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL

The Board has established a Nomination Committee (the “NC").
The committee consists of one Executive Director, Mr. Wang
Xing Shan, with two Independent Non-Executive Directors,
Mr. Zhang TiQin and Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis with effect of
1 April 2012. The primary purpose of the NC is to review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experiences) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes. The Committee identified suitable individual qualified
to become board members and makes recommendation to
the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of directors if necessary, in particular,
candidates who can add value to the management through
their contributions in the relevant strategic business areas and
which appointments will result on the constitution of strong and
diverse Board.

The procedure and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of director are laid down in the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles of Association”). According to the
Articles of Association, all directors of the Company are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and at
each annual general meeting, one third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office for rotation. Besides, any new
director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the existing Board shall submit himself/herself for re-
election by shareholders at the next following annual general
meeting.

The meetings of the NC was held twice during the year.
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Corporate Governance Report

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed director is ensured to have a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group and
that he is fully aware of his responsibilities under statute and
common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal requirements
and other regulatory requirements and the business and
governance policies of the issuer. The Directors are continually
updated with legal and regulatory developments, business and
market changes and the strategic development of the Group to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors take an active role in
board meetings, contribute to the development of strategies
and policies and make sound judgment on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments
and standard of conduct. They will take lead where potential
conflicts of interests arise. They are also members of various
board committees and scrutinize the overall performance of the
Group in achieving agreed corporate goals and objectives, and
monitoring the reporting of performance.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 of Main Board Listing Rule as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the requirement set
out under the Model Code throughout the period ended
31.December 2012.

SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

In respect of regular board meetings, an agenda and the
accompanying board papers are sent in full to all Directors at
least 3 days before the intended date of a meeting. Board papers
are circulated to the Directors to ensure they have adequate
information before the meeting for the ad hoc projects.
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The Management has the obligation to supply the Board
and its committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable it to make informed decisions. Where any
director requires more information than is volunteered by the
Management, each director has separate and independent
access to the issuer’s senior management to make further
enquires if necessary.

All Directors are entitled to have unlimited access to the board
papers and relevant materials. Such information is prepared
to enable the Board to make an informed decision on matters
placed before it.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company established a remuneration committee.

The committee consists of one Executive Director, Mr. Wang
Xing Shan, with two Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr.
Zhang TiQin and Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis with effect of 1
April 2012,

The principal duties of the remuneration committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
the remuneration of the Directors and senior management,
and to consider and approve remuneration for the directors
and senior management by reference to corporate goals and
objectives. The committee shall meet at least once a year if
necessary. No meeting of remuneration committee was held in
the year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Management provides such explanation and information
to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial and other information put before
the approval by the Board.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
financial statements for each financial year which give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and in
presenting the quarterly results, interim and annual financial
statements and announcements to shareholders. The Directors
aim to present a balanced and understandable assessment of
the Group’s, position and prospects. The Board is not aware of
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Corporate Governance Report

any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, the Board therefore continues to adopt the
going concern approach in preparing the accounts.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to present a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in the Company's annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive announcement and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and
reports to the regulators.

The Company applied the principles and complied with all the
code provisions set out in the CG Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2012, During the year 2012, the Board,
through performed by the external firm, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
covering all material financial, operational and risk management
functions. These reports are reviewed and appropriate actions
are taken.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprises all three Independent
Non-Executive Directors of the Company, Mr. Zhang Tigin, Ms.
Dai Ruimin and Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis as the members, who
among themselves possess a wealth of management experience
in the financial profession and commercial sectors.

Directors’ attendance at Audit Committee

meetings
Directors Number of attendance

Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis

(Chairman of the Audit Committee) 2/2
Mr. Zhang Tigin 172
Mr. Meng Xiang Xu 1/1*
Ms. Dai Ruimin 1/1*

The Audit Committee meets the external auditors at least once a
year to discuss any areas of concerns during the audits without
the presence of the management. The Audit Committee reviews
the interim and annual reports before submission to the Board.
The Committee focuses not only on the impact of the changes in
accounting policies and practices but also on the compliance with
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the legal requirements
in the review of the Company's interim and annual reports.
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* Mr. Meng Xiang Xu was resigned on 1 April 2012.0ne audit
committee meeting of the Company were held during the period
prior to his resignation. Ms. Dai Ruimin was appointed as an
independent non- executive director and a member of the audit
committee of the Company on 1 April 2012.

AUDITORS’' REMUNERATION

During the year, the remuneration paid to the Company’s
auditors, Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is set out as follows:

Fee paid/payable

HK$'000
Services rendered
Audit services 2,000
Other consultancy fee Nil

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company’s annual general meeting provides a good
opportunity for communication between the Board and
the Company’s shareholders. Chairman of the Board and
Committees are normally present to answer queries raised by
shareholders. External auditors also attend the annual general
meeting every year. Notice of the annual general meeting and
related papers are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days before the meeting.

VOTING BY POLL

At the 2012 annual general meeting, the procedures for
demanding a poll by the shareholders were incorporated in an
annual general meeting circular. The procedures for demanding
a poll by shareholders and for conducting a poll were also
explained by the chairman at the annual general meeting.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Group are trading of IT components, software
development and provision of outsourcing software services.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 45.56% of the
Group's total turnover. The five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 79.03% of the Group’s total purchases. In
addition, the largest customer accounted for approximately
17.03% of the Group's total turnover while the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 70.25% of the Group's total
purchases.

Except for Inspur Group Limited (“Inspur Corporation”), the
substantial shareholder of the Company, and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as “the Inspur Group”), none of the
directors, their associates or any shareholders (which, to
the knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the
Company'’s issued share capital) had any interest in the Group's
five largest customers and suppliers. Sales to and purchases from
the Inspur Group amounted to approximately 0.66% and 0.08%
respectively of the total sales and total purchases of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movement during the year of the Company’s share
capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in the consolidated Income Statement on page 54.
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FINAL DIVIDENDS

At the Annual General Meeting (“AGM") of the Company
to be held on 22 May 2013 (“Forthcoming AGM"), the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) will recommend a final
dividend of HK$0.006 per share with aggregated amount of
HK$25,364,642 (2011: HK$0.012 per share) for the year ended
31 December 2012. Subject to the approval of shareholders at
the Forthcoming AGM, the final dividend will be payable on 28
June 2013 to shareholders whose name appears on the register
of members of the Company on 6 June 2013.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of Association, or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit scheme are set out in
note 39 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 42
to the consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property, plant
and equipment of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Particulars of the Group's related party transactions are set out
in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements, certain of
which also constitute connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The
connected transactions are as follows:

1. On 8 April 2004, the Company and the Inspur Group
entered into a trademark licence agreement (the
“Trademark Licence Agreement”) which allowed the
Group to use the trademark “Lang Chao” in Hong Kong,
Taiwan and the People’s Republic of China free of charge.

Further details of such continuing connected transaction
were disclosed in the Company’s prospectus dated 20 April
2004 (the “Prospectus”).

The independent non-executive directors have reviewed
the above connected transaction and confirmed that
the above transaction was in accordance with the
relevant agreement governing the terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

2. On 12 January 2009, the Company entered into a new
framework agreement (“New Framework Agreement”)
with Inspur Group Limited, substantial shareholder, which
integrate the current continuing connected transactions
with Inspur Group Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as “Inspur Group”) under five categories of
activities which are in line with the current business model
of the Group. The major terms set out as follow:

A. Supply Transactions

On 11 September 2012, the Company and IPG
entered into the Supplemental Agreement. The
maximum annual caps under Supply Transactions will
not exceed HK$425,000,000 and HK$467,000,000
for each of the financial year ended 2012 and 2013
respectively.

35

Directors’ Report
BEEEWRE

BREXS
REARBEHRRMTIORBERAEE
BREALETZRS - BPETHEE
BEATRITZZHREEEHERS
FBERARES ETRB( EHRAD
BUAT  HBERBERS - BEXS
m

1. R-ZZTZEMFWANB ARF
BRI E DR L BRI &
(TABREFmE])  ABFHAE
BREE EBRPEARKMNE
AR T -

S ERER 52 HEHRN AR
AE-SEMAMA =182 BR
SR ([ ARER]) -
FRBER P EEBUINTEE
E - BRI B IRAR
PR IERETT - TS R
AFARAHAARREERAE
7 -

2. RZZEZTAF—A+=H ' KARQF
EEARFRBASEBRARRE
MEAR(SE: RBEEE)EIL
ERMR(FERBRE]D - &
BRIARIMNSERERIEED B
AR o EEEFAT -

A. HEXS

RZE—Z—FHAA+—H8"
ARRERBEBERAR
FINHERSHR S B
I HEXGBE-_T—=
FRZE—=FILEHBF
E 2 F 8 £ R 425,000,000
77T 5% 467,000,000 & 7T ©

/ REEERERA A /:$—1$Eﬁ%



Directors’ Report
BEEgRE

Further details of such continuing connected
transaction were disclosed in the Company’s circular
dated 3 October 2012 (the “Circular”) and 11
September 2012 announcement .

The aggregate transactions under Supply
Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to approximately HK$412,691,000.

The independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the above connected transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that
the Supply Transactions were (i) in the ordinary
course and usual course of the Group's business; (ii)
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to independent third parties who are not
connected persons of the Group as defined in the
Listing Rules; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the Supply Transactions on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests
of the shareholders of the Group as a whole.

Selling Agency Transactions

The Group appoints Inspur Group to act as selling
agent in the sale of the products and services of
the Group. In return, the Inspur Group will receive
a commission of 1% of the total sales value of the
products and the services. The maximum annual caps
of the value of transactions under Selling Agency
Transactions will not exceed RMB333,000,000, RMB
366,000,000 and RMB400,000,000 for each of
the financial year ended 31 December 2011, 2012
and 2013 respectively. The expected maximum
amounts of commissions to be paid by the Group
to the Inspur Group will not exceed RMB3,330,000,
RMB3,660,000 and RMB4,000,000 for each of the
financial year ended 31 December 2011, 2012 and
2013 respectively.
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Further details of such continuing connected
transaction were disclosed in the Circular.

The aggregate transactions under Selling Agency
Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to RMB173,602,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$213,349,000) and the related
commission amounted to RMB1,496,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,839,000).

The independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the above connected transactions for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed
that the Selling Agency Transactions were (i) in the
ordinary course and usual course of the Group’s
business; (ii) on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to independent third
parties who are not connected persons of the Group
as defined in the Listing Rules; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the Selling
Agency Transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Group as a whole.

Purchase Transactions

The Group will purchase the computer hardware
and software products by the Group from the Inspur
Group. The price per unit of the computer products
and components purchased from Inspur Group will
be agreed between parties with reference to the then
prevailing markets prices of such computer hardware
and software products at the relevant time.

The maximum annual caps under supply Transactions
will not exceed HK$160,000,000, HK$176,000,000
and HK$193,000,000 for each of the financial year
ended 31 December 2011 and 2012 and 2013
respectively.
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Further details of such continuing connected
transaction were disclosed in the Circular.

The aggregate transactions under Purchase
Transactions for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to HK$62,527,000.

The independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the above connected transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that
the Purchase Transactions were (i) in the ordinary
course and usual course of the Group's business; (ii)
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to independent third parties who are not
connected persons of the Group as defined in the
Listing Rules; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the Purchase Transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

Common Services Transactions

The Inspur Group shall provide office, water, heat,
electricity and vehicles for use (“Common Services”)
by the Group. The expenses to be charged will
be agreed upon between the parties and shall be
determined based on normal commercial terms
through arm’s length negotiation or on terms no less
favourable than he terms available from independent
third parties for provision of similar services. The
maximum annual amount of the expenses payable to
Inspur Group for each of the three years ending 31
December 2013 is RMB 13,000,000, RMB 14,300,000
and RMB 15,730,000 respectively.
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Further details of such continuing connected
transaction were disclosed in the Circular.

The use of Common Services for the year ended
31 December 2012 amounted to approximately
RMB7,701,000.

The independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the above connected transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that
the Common Services Transactions were (i) in the
ordinary course and usual course of the Group’s
business; (ii) on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to independent third
parties who are not connected persons of the Group
as defined in the Listing Rules; and (iii) in accordance
with the relevant agreement governing the Common
Services Transactions on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of
the Group as a whole.

Processing Transactions

Inspur Business System Company Limted (“Inspur
Business”) has appointed Inspur Cheeloo Company
Limited (“Inspur Cheeloo”) to provide services of
procurement of raw materials of and assembling and
manufacturing tax-collection cashier machines at
processing fee calculated at 5% of the value of the
raw materials (the “Cashier Machines Purchases”)
and thesaid rate is comparable to the rates in the
market. In general, Inspur Business will pay the price
of the taxcollection cashier machines (including the
processing fee) within 30 days after receipt of the
goods. Inspur Business and Inspur Group agreed that
the maximum annual caps of the Cashier Machines
will not exceed RMB182,000,000, R\MB200,000,000
and RMB220,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively.
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Further details of such continuing connected
transaction were disclosed in the Circular.

The aggregate amount under Processing Transactions
for the year ended 31 December 2012 amounted
to approximately RMB27,982,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$34,388,000).

The independent non-executive directors have
reviewed the above connected transactions for the
year ended 31 December 2012 and confirmed that
the Processing Transactions were (i) in the ordinary
course and usual course of the Group’s business; (ii)
on terms no less favourable to the Group than terms
available to independent third parties who are not
connected persons of the Group as defined in the
Listing Rules; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant
agreement governing the Processing Transactions
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESS AND
SUBSIDIARIES

In December 2011, the Company, through Inspur Shandong
Electronic Information Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, set up a jointly controlled entity, Shandong
Inspur Cloud Computing Industry Investment Co., Ltd ("L
FORMESEFEEZEIREARART"), with another two
related companies. The total contribution of the Group was
RMB100,000,000, representing 33.33% equity interest of the
entity. All contribution has been made during the year ended 31
December 2011.

In January 2012, the Group dispose of the total equity of
Shandong Inspur E-Government Software Limited to a related
company at a consideration of R\MB23,000,000.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution are set out as below:

Special reserve SR

Share premium &5 =B
Preferred shares equity reserve BRI E R
Share option reserve B
Accumulated (losses) profits REr&F

Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, the share
premium of the Company may be distributed subject to the
provision of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of
Association and provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company
will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. This share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid bonus
shares.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr. Sun Pishu
(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Wang Xingshan
Mr. Chen Dongfeng
Mr. Dong Hailong
Mr. Sun Chengtong
(appointed on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Meng Xiang Xu
(resigned on 1 April 2012)
Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis
Mr. Zhang Tigin
Mr. Samuel Y. Shen
(appointed on 1 September 2012)
Ms. Dai Ruimin
(appointed on 1 April 2012)

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation, other than the statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a
party and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of
the directors and the chief executive and their associates in
the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations, as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the shares of the Company

Name of director Capacity
EEpnE 14
Dong Hailong Beneficial owner
EiE5e ERERA
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(b) Long positions in the underlying shares of  (b) &2 R RALTE T AAIIEREE

equity derivatives of the Company

RiITHERR

Options in the Company

(Unlisted and physically settled equity derivatives)

RATZERE
(FEMREVIBZBAITETR)

Number of

Description of  underlying  Subscription

Name of director  Capacity equity derivates shares price per
EEHE 514 BT 18 B AR 12 share
T EMFHE S BRIABE
(Note) HK$
(Bf5E) BT
Wang Xingshan Owner Share Option 5,000,000 0.682
T HE wa A A
Chen Dongfeng Owner Share Option 4,000,000 0.682
ek 28 [ wa A AR
Dong Hailong Owner Share Option 2,000,000 0.682
Episy-id wa A fE R
Sun Chengtong Owner Share Option 4,000,000 0.682
I8l wa A fE e
Wong Lit Chor Owner Share Option 200,000 0.682
=RUA) wa A fE e e
Note (1):  On 10 December 2010, the share options were MIEE(): BRER-_SE—TFE+=
granted to director under the Share Option Scheme. A+ B R R IR A 5t 81 8%
FEE -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2012, none B EAiHEEIN M ——F+—
of the directors or the chief executive or its associates had A=+—H BMEEFXHmETH
any interests or short positions in any shares or underlying ABHREZBEALTRARRA]IHK
shares of equity derivatives of the Company or any of its EAEEE R AR IR AHITET A

associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
shows that, the following shareholders other than the directors
of the Company had notified the Company of relevant interests
in the issued capital of the Company.

(@) Long position in shares and underlying
shares of the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each of the Company

Name of shareholder Type of Interests
TERRHSE BB ERER

Inspur Group Limited Corporate (Note 1)
REEEABR AR NG R D)

Inspur Overseas Investment Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1)
RREIMRERR AT EnEa AMEE1)
Wang Yukun Beneficial owner

FFE EnEEA

Note 1: Inspur Group Limited is taken to be interested in

1,357,390,000 shares due to its indirect 100%
shareholdings in the issued share capital of Inspur
Overseas Investment Limited.
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FERRKR
RZFB—=—F+=-A=+—H ' ARQF
BREESFRPEKFIEIBCIHETENE
ERFEZMETR - BRAABESUIN
ATRREEMEARRFEREARAE
BITRAR B @R -

(a) RALRFRG KERER 7Y

S
RATFIREEO0.002 74 TH) i@
B%

Percentage

of the issued

Number of share capital of
issued ordinary the Company

shares held P g NN
EREE 2RITHRA
TEREE ZBEH
1,357,390,000 32.11%
1,357,390,000 32.11%
296,520,000 7.04%

MizE1: BHRRBEEFRAD A
MEEERBENEE
BERARBEBITHRARN
100% A% % - # LUt - R
SEERARBERAER
1,357,390,000 f% f% 15 R
AR -
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Directors’ Report
BEEgRE

(b) Long positions in series A senior redeemable
convertible voting preferred shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

IR Rt & 8

Microsoft Corporation Beneficial owner
(ECIWNG ERFERA

Notes 1:

Microsoft Corporation held 72,859,049 class A senior redeemable
voting preferred shares convertible into 297,052,141 Shares,
representing 6.57 % of the total enlarged voting rights in the
Company.

As at 31 December 2012, no persons have any other relevant
interests or short positions in shares or underlying shares of
equity derivatives of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings disclosed above, at no time
during the year was the Company, its holding company, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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(b) RRFRIFSHED A
BT REEE LRI

B
Approximate
percentage
Number of interests
of securities AR
EHEHE Btk
(Note 1)
( BF3ET)
72,859,049 100%
FeeE1:

M ER 572,859,049 0% & 5| B = 4 A
BRI BT EE EBER S
A BRETT# 297,052,141 R B 1D 2
SRR AR AIRERNBIRERED
6.57% °

RZE——-F+_A=+—HB8 " HFEA
THRARRDFRE SRR A ST A T A AR
BTN EMABRESIORE -

EEEN

AEER WEIILEBEARRERLZ
EMHEFNEZRD 2 EERITHZE
# o

RS

AD BB BN E RN RA BB
RRME3 -

BEROIESF 2L

R EXRBERRARERAIN RAF
EAMEHE - AA7 - EERAR - K
EAEMBERRRFAEEN B A A E
SEEMLH  MSARBESZAEE
AR B SAE A E A OE A B8 2 A7 3
B M o



COMPETING INTEREST

During the year ended 31 December 2012, none of the
directors, chief executive, initial management shareholders or
its substantial shareholders of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interests
in a business which competes with or may compete with the
business of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors, Mr. Zhang Tigin, Wong Lit Chor, Alexis and Ms Dai
Ruimin. Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis is the chairman of the audit
committee. The primary duties of the audit committee are to
review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
control systems of the Group.

Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the audit committee has held two meetings
and has reviewed the Company’s draft annual and interim
financial reports and consolidated financial statements prior
to recommending such reports and consolidated financial
statements to the Board for approval.

The Group's audited results for the year ended 31 December
2012 have been reviewed by the audit committee, which was of
the opinion that the preparation of such results complied with
the applicable accounting standards and requirements and that
adequate disclosures have been made.
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Directors’ Report
BEEgRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions set

out in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 of Listing Rules for Main Board

throughout the period ended 31 December 2012, save as:

(a

Under code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Wang Xingshan is both the Chairman and
CEO of the Company. This structure does not comply with
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board considers
that vesting the roles of Chairman and CEO in the same
person facilitates the execution of the Company'’s business
strategies and maximizes the effectiveness of its operation.

Under code provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent
non-executive directors and other non-executive directors
should also attend general meetings and develop a
balanced understanding of the views of shareholders.
Mr. Zhang Tigin, Mr. Wong Lit Chor, Alexis and Ms. Dai
Ruimin(both being independent non-executive Directors)
were unable to attend the annual general meeting as they
were obliged to be away for business trips. The Company
will improve its meeting scheduling and arrangement in
order to ensure full compliance with Code A.6.7 in future.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company confirmed that annual confirmations of

independence were received from each of the Company's

independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and all independent non-executive directors are

considered to be independent.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed issuers (the “Model Code")
set out in Appendix 10 of Main Board Listing Rule as its own
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiries to all Directors, all Directors
confirmed that they have complied with the requirement set
out under the Model Code throughout the period ended 31
December 2012.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by
the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of the
scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 December 2012.
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BEEgRE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during
the following periods:

(i) The register of members will be closed from 17 May 2013
to 22 May 2013 (both dates inclusive), during which
period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to
qualify to attend and vote at the AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar
of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17 Floor, 1712-1716 room, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 16 May 2013.

(i)  The register of members will be closed from 4 June 2013
to 6 June 2013 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the proposed final dividend, all transfers of shares
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Hong Kong branch share registrar
of the Company, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at 17 Floor, 1712-1716 room, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on 3 June 2013.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to
reappoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of
the Company. There has been no change in the auditor of the
Company since its incorporation on 29 January 2003.

On behalf of the Board
Wang Xingshan
CHAIRMAN

22th March 2013
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=3

TO THE MEMBERS OF INSPUR INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED

REEIFR AR E]

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Inspur
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to
196, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 3B BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed
terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit
in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
December 2012, and of the Group's loss and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 March 2013
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit
Other income
Other gains and losses
Administrative and
other operating expenses
Selling and distribution cost
Finance costs
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Impairment loss on goodwill
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity

Share of profit of an associate

(Loss) profit before taxation
Taxation

(Loss) profit for the year

(Loss) profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

(Loss) earnings per share
— Basic

— Diluted
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NOTES
i &E

11

19

10

11

15

2012 2011
—E—-C-F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
2,401,025 2,221,582
(1,893,855) (1,693,488)
507,170 528,094
90,929 96,829
(20,947) (8,804)
(313,402) (275,986)
(275,882) (241,707)
(6,101) (15,029)
(14,505) (16,325
(63,915) —
(237) —
13,627 705
(83,263) 67,777
(16,106) (19,617)
(99,369) 48,160
(93,319) 50,408
(6,050) (2,248)
(99,369) 48,160
(HK2.22 cents) HK1.31 cents
(2.22584L) 131581

(HK2.22 cents)

(2.22784l)

HK1.30 cents
1.30711l




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
mEZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

2012 2011
—B——F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year FR(EE) & (99,369) 48,160
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 as
Exchange differences arising on translation BMEESEZIENER 10,585 64,534
Total comprehensive (expense) income FAZE(FAX)Wa=EE
for the year (88,784) 112,694
Total comprehensive (expense) income fEfE 2 E () Ha
attributable to: N
Owners of the Company KARHEABA (82,743) 114,853
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR = (6,041) (2,159)
(88,784) 112,694
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MR &
At 31 December 2012
RZZB-——F+-A=+—H

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Other intangible assets
Available-for-sale investments
Interest in an associate

Interest in a jointly controlled entity

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and bills receivables

Prepaid lease payments
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amounts due from customers
for contract work
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Amount due from immediate
holding company

Amount due from ultimate
holding company

Amount due from non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary

Taxation recoverable

Pledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Assets classified as held for sale
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NOTES
i &E

16
17
18
20
21
22

23

24

25

17

25

26

25

25

25

25

27
27

2012 2011
—E—-C-F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
121,349 90,778
38,146 —
14,188 77,649
21,122 39,493
22,693 22,566
128,489 114,219
122,629 122,175
468,616 466,880
148,309 97,083
250,563 202,894
874 —
64,223 66,368
39,761 50,237
150,217 100,479
— 33,896
11,965 19,258
— 20

1,241 1,980
14,786 —
1,184,761 1,255,855
1,866,700 1,828,070
— 60,103
1,866,700 1,888,173




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Current liabilities
Derivative financial instruments
Trade and bills payables

Other payables, deposits received
and accrued expenses

Amounts due to customers

for contract work
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amount due to ultimate holding company
Amount due to non-controlling

interest of a subsidiary
Deferred income - government grant

Redeemable convertible preferred shares

Taxation payable
Liabilities associated with assets

classified as held for sale

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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NOTES
i &E

33

29

29

26

29

29

29

32

33

28

ma

B RS AR L 3R

At 31 December 2012

RZZ—=—F+=A=+—H

2012 2011
—2—-F %
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TR
30,857 9,600
192,276 161,159
174,896 139,591
85,443 37,253
26,885 19,746
3,221 4,787
— 3,177
3,903 3,271
64,961 —
11,717 16,869
594,159 395,453
— 31,663
594,159 427,116
1,272,541 1,461,057
1,741,157 1,927,937
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HmEMBERRE

At 31 December 2012
MWZZ——#+-fF=1+—8H

NOTES 2012 2011
i —2--F _—_T——F
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FHET
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Deferred income - government grant EERA —
I B 32 16,735 2,663
Redeemable convertible preferred shares A B& 6] A] 2 i
B 33 — 63,519
Deferred tax liabilities FEIEFRIBAE 34 19,140 22,668
35,875 88,850
1,705,282 1,839,087
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital % 7 30 8,455 8,415
Reserves G 1,693,749 1,826,220
Equity attributable to owners ZA/NSIEZ DN
of the Company JE 1k IR 1 1,702,204 1,834,635
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M2 3,078 4,452
Total equity @B 1,705,282 1,839,087

The consolidated financial statements on pages 54 to 196 were BNES4EEE 196 BEMERE T BHRE
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on REHEFERHEREEN_Z—=F=

22 March 2013 and are signed on its behalf by: AZ+ZBHF%  THTIEEREKE
FEEE
Mr. Wang Xingshan Mr. Dong Hailong
F &l 95
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERREBHRE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-ZT——F+-A=+—HL=FE

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARBEARE

Preferred

shares ~ Share Non-

equity ~ option controlling
Share  Share  Other  Special  reserve reserve Translation Retained interests

cpital premium  resenve reserve  BAR  BRE  resene  pofits  Totd  FER  Towl
B ROEE ZbBE %HRER REER  BE EIRE gRE% o E& A
HKSO00 HS000 HKS000 HKSUOO AKSO0D AKSOO0 HKSUD. HKSTO0D HKSOO0 HKSTR0 HKS000
Fhr TEr TEr TEr TEr #En TEr FEn T TR TEr
(Notea) ~ (Noteb)
(Wira)  (atb)

At 1 January 2011 NE—£-f-A 7583 792439 - 9 748 969  12749% 728953 1683699 2941 1,686,640
Profitos)for the year EmiEfIBE) - - - = = = — 048 5048 28 48160
Bxchange differences arsing on ranslaion AEEEIEREE = = = = = — B4 — B4 8 6453
Tota comprefiensive income (epenses) ortheyesr — ERRENEA(FR)#E = = = = = — M5 50408 11483 (159 11269

lsuance of shares upon conversion of redeematle TEEEARELEAN

preferred shars (note 33 BRI 33) 8 66376 = - (3% = = - 88 - 8
Recogition of equity-setled share based payments B RREEE RN
X158 - = = = = 1076 = — 107 - 1078
Dividend paid (note 14) Bffe (1) = = = = = = - (31916 (31916) —  (3791)
Contrbution from non-controling nterests HUNBATR
upon establishment of a subsicary FERERTE = = = = = = = = — 3610 3600
83 66376 - = (39%) 1078 - (37918 36083 3610 39793
At 31 December 2011 RF——E12f=1-A 8415 858815 - 9 1343 20484 191941 741445 1834635 445 1,839,087
Loss for the year EnER - - - - - - = (339 (93319 (6050 (98369)
Bxchange ifferences arising on translaton HEELEREE - = = = = — 10576 - 10576 9 1058
Tota comprefiensive ncome (epenses) ortheyesr —— ERGENE(FR) 88 = = = = — 10576 (3319 84 60 (8878
Brercie of share options f1ikmE 0 156 = = = = = - 1% - 1%
Recognition of equitysetfled share based payments ~~ EAAMREEEENRA
XT38 £ = = = AL = - - 1%
Release upon disposal of a subsiciary HERER kR = - = = = - 06 2068 = = =
Diidend paid note 14) BAfA (i 14) = > - - - - = (5049 (50489 - (50489
Contrbution from non-controling nterests IHERER TR 3 T = = = = = = — 386 386
Acquiifon of paril interestnastbsidary (note 35) ~ WEMBAFSAEA(HEY) - - (8 = = = = - e I (183
4 1256 (2634) = - 2139 (2068 (48421) (49688 46T (45001)
At 31 December 2012 R-F-Etf=1-A 8455 80071 (2634 9 1343 2263 200449 599,705 1,702,204 3078 1,705,282
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

n'l_;\ = Eé@@iﬁ%
For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-ZT——F+-A=+—HL=FE

Notes:

(@)  Other reserve is resulted from the acquisition of partial interest in
a subsidiary. Details of the acquisition are set out in note 35.

(b)  The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries and
the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued for the
acquisition at the time of the reorganisation prior to the listing of
the Company's shares in 2003.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEREHRERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Income tax
Share of profit of an associate
Share of loss of a jointly
controlled entity
Interest income
Interest expenses
Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Gain on disposal of other
intangible asset
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Net loss (gain) on disposal/written off
of property, plant and equipment

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

Reversal of allowance for bad
and doubtful debts

Expense recognised in profit or loss
in respect of equity-settled
share-based payments

Write-down of inventories

Deferred income - government grant
recognised in profit or loss

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Loss arising from modification
of the terms of redeemable
convertible preferred shares

Fair value change in convertible option
derivatives embedded in redeemable
convertible preferred shares

Impairment loss on goodwill

Impairment loss on amounts due from
customers for contract work

HIBE
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BRTIZIEFE
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EIEWA

AERARRELR
A ITRAR B DT
ETAZRAFEES

AEREERE

EREFEHITER
REREEE

2012
—E——F
HKS$°000
FET

(99,369)

16,106
(13,627)

237
(31,731)
6,101

(1,840)
14,505

(1,696)

27,881

144
3,434

2,139
1,109

(5.163)
719

21,257
63,915

3,788

2011
—T——F
HK$000
FET

48,160
19,617
(705)
(24,043)

15,029

(1,623)
16,325

32,550

(44)

1,323

(1,281)

10,786

6,007

(19,118)

9,600

4,577
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

:%.F Eﬁlﬁﬂlbiiﬁﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in trade
and bills receivables
Decrease in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Decrease in amounts due from customers
for contract work
Increase in amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries
Decrease in amount due from
immediate holding company
Decrease (increase) in amount due from
ultimate holding company
Increase (decrease) in trade
and bills payables
Increase in other payables, deposits
received and accrued expenses
Increase (decrease) in amounts due
to customers for contract work
Increase in amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries
Increase in amount due
to ultimate holding company
Receipts of deferred
income - government grant

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Tﬁ(i'ﬂl])/ﬂéd\
5 RBER R R R R &
(i'jJD)ﬂ’J‘
BNHIE - RHek
Hoh e Y AR OB
EREFELHTIE
HER D
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JEWE Z R A A
SRR,
VH&EZ“T /NI
REER A (3500)
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FERTRIRIE h1ORL D)
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K FERHF 238 N
ERNEFPEHIE
FEE A CRL )
FET R &= B BT B A 7]
TR AN
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N
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2012 2011
—E-C-F —E——F
HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET
7,909 117,160
(52,335) 67,168
(51,103) 36,937
2,145 11
6,688 10,233
(45,197) (57,571)
33,896 25,659
5,892 (16,246)
31,117 (105,093)
35,305 39,055
48,190 (2,136)
6,655 1,992
20 2
19,867 9,591
49,049 126,762
(23,925) (24,217)
25,124 102,545




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEREHRERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property,
plant and equipment
Net cash from disposal of a subsidiary

Payment for leasehold land

Interest received

Capital contribution to a jointly
controlled entity

Dividend received from
available-for-sale investments

Dividend received from an associate

Advances to fellow subsidiaries

Advances to non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary

Repayment from non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary

Advance to ultimate holding company

Repayment from ultimate
holding company
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits

Placement to pledged bank deposits

Proceeds from disposal

of other intangible asset
Proceeds from disposal

of property, plant and equipment

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
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NOTES 2012 2011
i = e —T——F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FHET TFHET

(58,753) (20,364)

36 20,478 —
(39,317) —

31,731 24,043

— (122,175)

1,840 1,623

— 18,078

(4,392) (1,375)

— (20)

20 —

— (1,735)

1,401 =

9,599 -

(24,385) =

5,652 =

870 513

(55,256) (101,412)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MERSREBWME

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Advance from fellow subsidiaries

Repayment to fellow subsidiaries
Repayment to ultimate holding company

Repayment to non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary

Acquisition of partial interest
in a subsidiary

Interest paid to redeemable
convertible preferred shares holder

Dividend paid to ordinary shareholders
Proceeds from exercise of share options

Capital injection from other shareholder
of a subsidiary

Payment for redemption of
redeemable convertible preferred shares

NET CASH USED
IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
RATE CHANGES

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF THE YEAR
Bank balances and cash
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NOTES 2012 2011
Pt —F--F —T—F
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

— 357

(287) —
(1,586) (9,833)

(3,177) —

35 (1,843) —
(4,659) (10,211)

(50,489) (37,916)

1,296 —

3,876 3,670

— (79,486)

(56.869) (133,419)

(87,001) (132,286)

1,263,720 1,343,682

8,042 52,324

1,184,761 1,263,720




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, Inspur Overseas Investment Limited
("Inspur Overseas”), a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”) and Inspur Group Limited (“Inspur
Corporation”), a company established in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"”) are the immediate holding
company and ultimate holding company respectively. On
18 September, 2012, Inspur Electronics (HK) Limited, the
former immediate holding company, transferred all of its
shares of the Company to Inspur Overseas. Accordingly,
Inspur Electronics (HK) Limited became a fellow subsidiary
of the Company. The addresses of the registered office
and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the introduction to the annual report.

The functional currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB"). For the convenience of the consolidated financial
statements users, the consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong Dollar (“HKD"), as the
Company's shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Group are trading of computer
components, software development and provision of
software outsourcing services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute

of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 7

Disclosures - Transfers
of financial assets.

The application of the above amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in

these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised standards, amendments and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective:

Amendments to HKFRSs

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009 - 2011 cycle'

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting financial

assets and financial liabilities'

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date

and HKFRS 7

Amendments to

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11

and HKFRS 12

Amendments to

of HKFRS 9 and transition
disclosures?

Consolidated financial
statements, joint
arrangements
and disclosure of interests
in other entities: Transition
guidance'

Investment entities?

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12

and HKAS 27

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11
HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 19 (as revised

in 2011)

HKAS 27 (as revised

in2011)

HKAS 28 (as revised

in2011)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Financial Instruments?

Consolidated financial
statements’

Joint Arrangements’

Disclosure of interests in
other entities'

Fair value measurement!

Employee benefits’

Separate financial statements’

Investments in associates

and joint ventures'
Presentation of items of

other comprehensive income?

Amendments to HKAS 32  Offsetting financial assets and

HK(FRIC) - INT 20

financial liabilities?
Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine'
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015.

& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2012.

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 amended in 2010 includes the requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
and for derecognition.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement” are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the
end of subsequent reporting periods. In addition,
under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

e  With regard to the measurement of financial
liabilities designated as at fair value through profit
or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value of
financial liabilities attributable to changes in the
financial liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through
profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2015, with earlier application
permitted. The directors anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 will affect the classification and measurement
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments but have
no material impact on other financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of

items of other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income” introduce new terminology
for the statement of comprehensive income and income
statement. Under the amendments to HKAS 1, a ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ is renamed as a ‘statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income’ and
an ‘income statement’ is renamed as a ‘statement of
profit or loss’. The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the
option to present profit or loss and other comprehensive
income in either a single statement or in two separate
but consecutive statements. However, the amendments
to HKAS 1 require items of other comprehensive income
to be grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items
that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when
specific conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the
same basis — the amendments do not change the option
to present items of other comprehensive income either

before tax or net of tax.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for the Group
for annual period beginning on 1 January 2013. The
presentation of items of other comprehensive income
will be modified accordingly when the amendments are

applied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for
fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value
measurements. The standard defines fair value, establishes
a framework for measuring fair value, and requires
disclosures about fair value measurements. The scope of
HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to both financial instrument
items and non-financial instrument items for which
other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except
in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those
in the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will
be extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities
within its scope.

HKFRS 13 is effective for the Group for annual period
beginning on 1 January 2013, with earlier application
permitted. The directors anticipate that the application
of the new standard has no material impact on amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements but may
result in more extensive disclosures.

Except for above, the directors anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the financial performance and
financial position of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principle accounting policies adopted are set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing
control over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the subsidiary
at the date when control is lost (including any components
of other comprehensive income attributable to them),
and (i) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognise as
a gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.
When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued
amounts or fair values and the related cumulative gain
or loss has been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39
“Financial instruments: recognition and measurement”
or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
benefits” respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered
into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquiree are measured in accordance with
HKFRS 2 “Share-based payment” at the acquisition
date (see the accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
assets held for sale and discontinued operations” are
measured in accordance with that Standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after re-assessment, the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and
is presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating units (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill (continued)

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition
in a reporting period, the cash-generating unit to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying
amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the unit and then to the other assets of the unit a pro rata
on the basis based on the carrying amount of each asset
in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in the profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised
for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. The financial
statements of an associate used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method,
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
that associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of an associate recognised at the date
of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment in an associate (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group’s investment in an associate.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the
investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs to sell) with its
carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.

Joint ventures
Jointly controlled entity

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment
of a separate entity in which venturers have joint control
over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as
jointly controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of a jointly controlled
entity are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investment in a jointly controlled
entity is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the jointly controlled entity.
When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly controlled
entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled
entity (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (continued)
Jointly controlled entity (continued)

The financial statements of a jointly controlled entity
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment
loss with respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly
controlled entity. When necessary, the entire carrying
amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
to sell) with its carrying amount. Any impairment loss
recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of discounts, returns and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract.
The stage of completion of the contract is determined as

follows:

J installation fees are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the installation, determined
as the proportion of the total time expected to install
that has elapsed at the end of the reporting period;

o servicing fees are recognised by reference to the
proportion of the total cost of providing the service;

and

o revenue from time and material contracts is
recognised at the contractual rates as labour hours

and direct expenses are incurred.

Revenue from provision of consultancy and software
development services, software outsourcing and
commission income are recognised when services are

provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income from a financial asset is accrued
on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
Group's rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be

measured reliably).

Value Added Tax (“VAT") refund is recognised as income
when the Group’s rights to receive the VAT refund has

been established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold
land (classified as finance leases) and building held for
administrative purposes other than properties under
construction as described below are stated in the
consolidated financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment other than
properties under construction and less their estimated
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees, the amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided
during the construction period and, for qualifying assets,
borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group's
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation
of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Government grants and subsidies

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Software development contracts

Where the outcome of a software development contract
can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised
by reference to the stage of completion of the contract
activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based
on the proportion that contract costs incurred for work
performed to date relative to the estimated total contract
costs, except where this would not be representative of
the stage of completion. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a software development contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is
recognised to the extent of contract costs incurred that
it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are
recognised as expenses in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
for contract works. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers for contract works. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customers are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position under
trade receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

o how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition,
internally-generated intangible asset is measured at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses (if any), on the same basis as intangible
assets acquired separately.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's entities
are translated from their functional currencies into the
presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HKD) using
exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. Income and expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate). On deconsolidation of
a group entity which is not a foreign operation, exchange
differences accumulated in the translation reserve arising
from translating the assets and liabilities of the relevant
entity into the presentation currency of the Group, will be
transferred directly to retained profits.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated income statement because
it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, and interest in a joint venture, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at costs less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted
for on a prospective basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (continued)
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is recognised as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives
is recognised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful lives.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured at the difference between
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognised in the profit or loss in the period
when the asset is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and

intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill

above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be

identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future

cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill (see
the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets comprise loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets. The accounting
policies are set out below. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is

determined at the time of initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables (including trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables and amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding company, ultimate
holding company and non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary, pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets

below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis

for debt instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables or
held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
guoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity instrument are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of the reporting period (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group's right to
receive the dividend is established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Loans and receivable and available-for-sale financial assets
are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
the reporting period. Financial assets are considered to
be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

J it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period and observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For loans and receivables, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

For available-for-sale financial assets carried at cost,
the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the loans and receivables is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial
assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or
loss.

For loans and receivables, if in a subsequent period, the
amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at
the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and

an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of

direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying

amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Redeemable convertible preferred shares (“Preferred
Shares”)

Preferred Shares issued by the Company that contain both
the liability and equity components are classified separately
into respective liability and equity components on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial
asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instrument is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest rate of similar non-convertible debts. The
difference between the proceeds of the issue of the
Preferred Shares and the fair value assigned to the liability
component, representing the embedded conversion option
for the holder to convert the Preferred Shares into equity,
is included in equity (Preferred shares equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
Preferred Shares is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
preferred shares equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in preferred
shares equity reserve will be transferred to share premium).
Where the option remains unexercised at the expiry date,
the balance stated in preferred shares equity reserve will
remain in the preferred shares equity reserve. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the option.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Redeemable convertible preferred shares (“Preferred
Shares”) (continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the Preferred
Shares are allocated to the liability and equity components
in proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the equity component are
charged directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
Preferred Shares using the effective interest method.

Redeemable convertible preferred shares with modified
terms (“New Preferred Shares”)

New Preferred Shares issued by the Company that
contain both liability and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective items on initial
recognition. Conversion option that will be settled other
than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity instruments is a conversion option derivative. At
the date of issue, both the liability and conversion option
components are recognised at fair value. In subsequent
periods, the liability component of the New Preferred
Shares is carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The conversion option derivative
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the New
Preferred Shares are allocated to the liability and
conversion option components in proportion to their
relative fair values. Transaction costs relating to the
conversion option derivative is charged to profit or loss
immediately. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of the
liability portion and amortised over the period of the New
Preferred Shares using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instrument (continued)

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and bills payables,
other payables and accrued expenses and amounts due
to fellow subsidiaries, ultimate holding company and
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Substantial modification of a financial
liability

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing
financial liability is accounted for as an extinguishment
of the original financial liability and the recognition of
a new financial liability. The difference between the
carrying amount of a financial liability extinguished and
the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight line basis over the relevant lease terms, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire
lease is classified as an operating lease. Specifically,
the minimum lease payments (including any lump-sum
upfront payments) are allocated between the land and the
building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments”
position and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-

in the consolidated statement of financial

line basis. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees of the Group

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date
is recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over
the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share option reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to share
option reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits.

In relation to share options granted before 1 January
2005, the Group chose not to apply HKFRS 2 “Share-based
payments” with respect to share options granted after 7
November 2002 and vested before 1 January 2005, the
financial impact of share options granted is not recorded in
the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit
or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the
exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal
value of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price
per share over the nominal value of the shares is recorded
as share premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled
prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register of
outstanding options.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Retirement benefits costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other retirement benefit schemes managed by the PRC
government are charged as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Estimated impairment of goodwill and
other intangible assets

Determining whether goodwill and other intangible assets
relating to the software development and solution and
acquired in a business combination are impaired requires
an estimation of the recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value less cost to sell and value
in use. The Group performed impairment assessment by
estimating the value in use of the cash-generating unit in
which the goodwill and intangible assets are attributable
to, which approximately the fair value less cost to sell. The
value in use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating units and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. The discount rate represents
the rate that reflects the current market assessment of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the future cash flow estimates have not
been adjusted. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or where there are events or changes
in facts or circumstances which resulted in a revision of
estimated cash flows, further material impairment loss
or reversal of impairment loss may arise. The carrying
amounts of goodwill and other intangible assets at 31
December 2012 were approximately HK$14,188,000
(2011: HK$77,649,000) and HK$21,122,000 (2011:
HK$39,493,000) respectively with impairment loss
recognised during the year for goodwill of HK$63,915,000
(2011: nil). No impairment loss was recognised for other
intangible assets for both years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE-T-—F+-A=+-RILFE
5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. EXEREE
The Group's policy is to maintain a strong capital base REENBREETREEARE
so as to maintain creditor and market confidence and W mRERARTSHASEESR
to sustain future development of business. The Group's BOEZFRREBHERE - N&
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. B EEREELATFER -
The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which AEEEAEBEHEER(BERZT
include redeemable convertible preferred shares disclosed 33FTHHEBE AR AT ] AR B SE AR ) &
in note 33 and equity attributable to owners of the RAAGHEAEANEGEERRZ(BEEE
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and TR - RERBTREHN) MK -
retained profits.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure RRAREEREBEEEK AR SRR
on a continuous basis taking into account the cost of B RIS BRSNS o
capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. BERESZEBRES  IA5EER
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group IRTTRR B« TR D R 3Tl IE
will balance its overall capital structure through the @TT@H&@?&H&EET?QHXT—\?F?
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue IR EESEOR B EB T EELE
of redeemable convertible preferred shares or convertible BARLERE -
notes to strategic investors or the redemption of the
existing debt.
6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6. €@TH
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) T AMER
2012 2011
—B—CF —FB——F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Financial assets PREE
Available-for—sale investment AEEHERE 22,693 22,566
Loans and receivables EAR R ERER K
(including cash and (BREEREs K
cash equivalents) ReFED) 1,648,819 1,647,349
Financial liabilities Gl =N
Amortised cost RN 353,477 289,557
Fair value through profit or loss BRAFER AERE
— Derivative financial instruments —THEEemT A 30,857 9,600
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

6. T HE®)
(b) IR EEEBEZERK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, immediate
holding company, ultimate holding company and
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, trade and
bills receivables, other receivables, trade and bills
payables, other payables and accrued expenses,
amounts due to fellow subsidiaries and ultimate
holding company and non-controlling interest of
a subsidiary, redeemable convertible preferred
shares, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group collects most of its revenue in HK$ and
RMB and incurs most of the expenditures as well as
capital expenditures in HK$ and RMB. The directors
consider that the Group’s foreign currency exchange
risk is insignificant as the majority of the Group's
transactions are denominated in functional currency
of each individual group entity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €T E%E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) Bt EIEEEBEREK
and policies (continued) R(E)
Market risk (continued) miGEkR (&)
Currency risk (continued) EmfE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign REHMAE - NREBLAINE
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities FTECEREERABENE
at the reporting date are as follows: EERT :
Assets Liabilities
BE afE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——F =B =—T—F
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FETT FET FET FET
Relative to RMB: HEARE :
HK$ BT 1,624 660 64,961 63,519
Relative to HK$ BT
United States ET
Dollars (“US$") ) 71,488 130,300 — —
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) HIE([HEJ) 12 13,470 —
Euro BT — 163 — —
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

For the entities of which their functional currency is
HK$ while holding assets denominated in US$, the
directors consider that, as HK$ is pegged to US$, the
Group is not subject to significant foreign currency
risk from change in foreign exchange rate of HK$
against US$ and hence only consider the sensitivity
of the change in foreign exchange rate of HK$
against currencies other than US$. The sensitivity
analysis includes only outstanding monetary items
which are denominated in relevant foreign currencies
and adjusts its translation at the year end for a 5%
change in the relevant foreign currencies exchange
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax profit for the year where the relevant
foreign currencies strengthens 5% against the
functional currency of each group entities. For a
5% weakening of the relevant foreign currencies
against the relevant foreign currencies, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax
profit for the year and the balances below would be
negative. 5% (2011: 5%) is the sensitivity rate used
by management in the assessment of the reasonably
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

(Increase) decrease in post-tax FRRFIEEE
loss for the year (4B h0) Rk >

(2011: (Decrease) increase in

post-tax profit for the year) s A Rt >
HK$ impact BT E
JPY impact HExEZ
Euro impact B a7

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

6. ERMIEAE®

(b)

—E——F  FAKRTIE
)38 00)

M REREEBZERK
R(E)

miEmEE(E)

IR B 7T
%Abff?ﬁgﬁi’%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁui
TTEIEMNEECERA
ﬁﬁ%mﬁ%m%ﬁ*é%
WL\EZXE.-/%ER%EM
HINEE B 3 R7 B BT ) SN [ F

WAEKR - WEZEELETLRL
ETLAINEHE 2 [E KRB
BRRE - HRESNERT
AHEBINEIENREESE
BIRE  YTESFRUEH
HBR5% HENEE R
LETRERHE - NXFAR
MEHBRTFAREBINE
AEEBEERIEERHE
5% Ffﬁ@i UEESigillE Yl

EHBNEHEEEE
%%UJ@E%?%E&@S% - BIEA
BRBRENEFE N A
THBEEZ2AH - 5%(=F
——F 5% )WEKRELL X

EEREMTEINEERS
BEEE -
2012 2011
—F-——-F —_FT—F
HKS$°000 HK$'000
FET TET
(2,644) (2,624)
1 505
— 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. TEITHE®E)
(b) IR EEEBEZERK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to redeemable convertible preferred shares.
The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk primarily
related to its bank balances carried at prevailing
market rate. In addition, the Group has concentration
of interest rate risk on its floating rate bank balances
which expose the Group significantly towards the
change in the People’s Bank of China’s interest rate.

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the variable-rate bank
balances in the PRC. The analysis is prepared
assuming the PRC bank balances outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding
for the whole year. A 100 basis points (2011: 50
basis points) increase or 50 basis points (2011: 50
basis points) decrease is used, which represents
management'’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Interest rate risk (continued)

The management adjusted the sensitivity rate from
50 basis points to 100 basis points for the upward
interest rate after considering the very low interest
rate level at present and the market’s expectation on
the future interest rate trend in the coming year.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points (2011:
50 basis points) higher or 50 basis points (2011:
50 basis points) lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the
year ended 31 December 2012 would decrease
by HK$9,373,000 (2011: post-tax profit would
increase by HK$4,693,000) and increase by
HK$4,686,000 (2011: post-tax profit would decrease
by HK$4,693,000) respectively.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

EWMIT A
(b) BIEREMEEBEZERK

R(#)
miSEkE(E)
x5 (8)

K= B B AT R F R oK FE
K 11 455 78 HA 3R 6 /9 R 2R =K
8% TEEMR EANFEX
SBRE L KRB S0 R AR
Z100 &% -

i F) & E F100% 2h(=
T — —F 50HEZ)H T
PRSOE ZH( =T — — F:
SOE Bh) i Fr B H fth B &
RETE: AXEEEZE
—E—ZHF+ZR=+—
AEFEzhRBMEBES
2 Bl R 429,373,000% JT
(ZE——F: BEEREN
& # HN4,693,000% 7t ) &
# 104,686,000 T(=— &
——F: BREREREMNERD
4,693,000787T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. TEITHE®E)
(b) IR EEEBEZERK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to price risk through its
available-for-sale investments. However, the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group is required to estimate the fair value of
the conversion option embedded in the redeemable
convertible preferred shares at the end of the
reporting period with changes in fair value to be
recognised in profit or loss as long as the redeemable
convertible preferred shares are outstanding. The fair
value adjustment will be affected either positively or
negatively, amongst others, by the changes in market
interest rate, the Company's share market price and
share price volatility.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the Company'’s share price
risks at the reporting date only as the directors of
the Company consider that the change in market
interest rate may not have significant financial
impact on the fair value of conversion option. If
the Company’s share price, which was used as key
input in the valuation of conversion option, had
been 10% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's loss for the year (as a
result of changes in fair value of conversion option
component of redeemable convertible preferred
shares) would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$7,972,000 (2011:profit for the year decrease/
increase by HK$4,000,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TEMTAR®)
(b) BA¥5EBRE IR B R R

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event of the counterparties’ failure to perform their
obligations as at 31 December 2012 and 2011 in
relation to each class of recognised financial assets
is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and bills receivable, amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding company and
ultimate holding company at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are
made for irrecoverable amounts. The Group's trade
and bills receivables as at 31 December 2012 are due
from a large number of customers, spread across
diverse industries. The management closely monitors
the subsequent settlement of the customers and does
not grant long credit period to them. In this regard,
the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. TEITHE®E)
(b) IR EEEBEZERK

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group has concentration of credit risk on trade
receivables from ultimate holding company and two
fellow subsidiaries (2011: ultimate holding company,
immediate holding company and a fellow subsidiary).
The ultimate holding company and a fellow
subsidiary (2011: ultimate holding company and a
fellow subsidiary) are within software development
and solution segment and located in the PRC
and the other fellow subsidiary (2011: immediate
holding company) is within trading of IT components
segment and located in HK.

The Group's bank balances are deposited with banks
with high credit ratings and the Group has limited
exposure to any single financial institution.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains adequate cash and cash
equivalents by continuously monitor forecast and
actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of certain financial assets (including trade and bills
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries,
immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) and certain financial liabilities (including
trade and bills payables, other payables and accrued
expenses, amounts due to fellow subsidiaries,
ultimate holding company and non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary and interest payable and
principal of redeemable convertible preferred shares).
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6.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €T E%E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) Bt EIEEEBEREK
and policies (continued) R(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESEK(E)
The following table details the Group's remaining TREAIAEE Al EITE
contractual maturity for its aforesaid non-derivative EBeMEENR TSR
monetary financial assets. The table below has been HIER ZxBEZZEESH
drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual BE(BEREERRITER
maturities of those financial assets including interest RITHEBRBE RN & F
that will be earned on those assets except for BEBHRIAFE)BRITE
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and cash: R HABER GRS
Total
Weighted  Repayable carrying
average  on demand 6 months Total  amountat
effective  orless than 3 months to undiscounted  31.12.2012
interestrate 3 months to 1 year 1to5  cashflows W=B--%
MEYS  KEREE  6months AMER yeas  RfiRRE t=A=t-H
BBAE FOM=@R =Z~ER E-F -Z1f TBAR REELH
% HKS000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000
% FEr .23 FET FEn FET FEr
2012 5=
Trade and bills receivables ~ EWEZEHRENZ - 161,048 4,454 47,061 = 250,563 250,563
Amounts due from GEE]
fellow subsidiaries NG — 138,299 9,414 2,504 — 150,217 150,217
Amount due from ultimate RS R
holding company NAZE — 11,965 = = = 11,965 11,965
Pledged bank deposits BEREAER 1.61 = 8,256 6,530 = 14,786 14,786
Bank balancesand cash ~ FTER RS 005 1,184,761 = = — 1184761 1,184,761
1,496,073 60,124 56,095 — 1,612,292 1,612,292
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €T A%
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) MEEKREREBERK

R(E)
FEBESER(E)

and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Total
Weighted Repayable carying
average  on demand 6 months Total amount at
effective or less than 3 months to undiscounted ~ 31.12.2011
interest rate 3 months to 1 year Tt05 @shflows KZF—F
mE  REXEE 6 months ~MEA yeas  AfREEE TZA=1-A
THERFE SOR=EA  =2AEA E-F —Zh% nEdE (REREE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
% AT AT AT AT AT AT
2011 5-F
Trade and bills receivables B EREHRELZE = 132,747 44,037 26,110 = 202,894 202,894
Amounts due from iG]
fellow subsidiaries HEARFE = 89,542 7530 3407 = 100,479 100,479
Amount due from immediate FEUE B2
holding company NETE — 338% — — - 33,8% 33,39
Amount due from ultmate MR R
holding company NERE = 19,258 = = = 19,258 19258
Amount due from L GEN
non-controling FERERE
interest of a subsidiary - 2 - - — 20 2
Bank balancesand cash ~~ RfTEBERS 005 1255855 = = — 125585  1,255855
1,531,318 51,567 29517 — 1,612,402 1,612,402
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. €T E%E)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) Bt EIEEEBEREK
and policies (continued) R(E)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBESEK(E)
The following table details the Group's remaining TRAJINAEEFEITEE A
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial BEERGEERHNHT
liabilities based on the agreed repayment dates. The EREBIBER - ZRE IR
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted BAEEMBERRFTR
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest RenERxFANKAH
date on which the Group can be required to pay. mE - BEAMNEEAEHE
The table includes both interest and principal cash ME ©
flows.
Total
Weighted  Repayable carrying
average  on demand 3 months Total  amountat
effective  orless than to6 6 months undiscounted  31.12.2012
interest rate 3 months months to 1 year 1to5  cashflows W=B-Z%

MEFH  REXEE to6months AER years  AfiEEE +-A=t-A
BRAZ dORZER =EAER 3-f  -FEF  fENE CEEE4E
% HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
% FAT 77 77 FAT FAT FAT

2012 ZE-C
Trade and bills payables ~ EAEREARENZIE = 137,493 41302 7461 = 192,276 192,276
Other payables and At ERRE

accrued expenses REHRR = 61498 4,484 152 = 66,134 66,134
Amounts due to ERREENE

fellow subsidiaries RAE = 26,885 = = = 26,885 26,885
Amount due toultimate  ERSE

holding company BRARE = 32 = = = 3221 3.221
Redeemable convertible ~ ATEEEIATIAR

preferred shares Bl 9.0 = = 69,751 = 69,751 64,961

229,097 51,806 71,364 486 358,267 353471
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-ZT——F+-A=+—HL=FE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. TRITHE®)
(b) Financial risk management objectives (b) Bt R EE B ERK
and policies (continued) RE)

Liquidity risk (continued) REBESER(E)
Total
Weighted Repayable carying
average  on demand Total amount at
effective ~ or less than 3 months 6 months undiscounted  31.12.2011
interest rate 3 months 06 to 1 year 105 cashfows RZF-——%F

mEwY  HEXEE months ~ER yas  AREE tZA=T-H
BEAE AOR=ER =2~ EA EF 20k nERE REESE
% HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS$ 000
% FAT AT FAT FAT FET FAT

2011 2%
Tradeand bils payables ~ EZEMEARENEE = 138,112 14,925 8122 = 161,159 161,159
Other payables and AthERRE

acarued expenses RIS = 34,009 2836 34 = 37,169 37,169
Amounts due to ERRSENE

fellow subsidiaries AARE = 12,157 7,589 = = 19,746 19,746
Amount dueto ultimate B R

holding company ERATTE - 4787 — - - 4,787 4787
Amount due to non-controlling B A7)

interest of a subsidiary kiR E = 3177 = = = 3177 3177
Redeemable convertible ~ ATEEE TR

preferred shares ExR 90 = = 5,716 69,751 75,467 63519

192,242 25,350 14,162 69,751 301,505 289,557

No liquidity analysis for its derivative financial HRZENETAYEEEASHR
instruments is presented as there is no contractual e MEZITESRT AR
cash flows arising from these derivative instruments. BEESIMN °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. 2RI H®E
(c) Fair value () A¥E

The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis. For an option-based derivative, the
fair value is estimated using an appropriate option
pricing model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active market for identical assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, Level 3
financial liability represented the derivative financial
instruments embedded in the redeemable convertible
preferred shares. Details of reconciliation are
disclosed in note 33.
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

7. REVENUE 7. WA
Revenue represents revenue arising on sales of information WA HEERBRM(NIT]) TH
technology (“IT") components, software development BHREEORBMINEEHNEE
contracts and software outsourcing contracts. An analysis A > REBERFERA ST
of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: o
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —2——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Sales of IT components IT T 1,239,465 963,443
Revenue from software PR
development contracts CXSLION
- Sales of IT peripherals and —HEITEZER
software SENES 480,953 675,803
- Software development —EHRE 492,152 457,859
Revenue from software BN
outsourcing contracts B HUWA 188,455 124,477
2,401,025 2,221,582
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is currently organised into three operating

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

8. oEEHR
AEEBE DK = KESIPT - B
TTHE S SRR R SR

divisions, namely trading of IT components, software
development and solution and software outsourcing.
These operating divisions are the basis of the internal
reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker,
represented by the board of directors of the Group, in

RERESRMINBIRY -  AEET R

HR R

RE(XEBESRS
BIARSEEIA Lt Z 5 ERFI & o

)€ HAZE
B A

R E AR AR F X PIRR

order to assess their performance.

Segment revenues and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segment.

For the year ended 31 December 2012

DHEWAREE
BEE D

TXEFAEE LA 2HREED
0 2 WA RFKEN DT

HE—F——F+-_H=+—HIF

Segment revenue

Segment profit (loss)

GE-LION

AR (E1R)

Other income, gains HbA -
and losses Wiz & E1E

Share of profit of an FE(L B & A 7]
associate pintil

Share of loss of a jointly
controlled entity

(G — R [A)

EHEEER

Central administration costs 7 SR 1T ER AR 7R
Interest expenses FEx H
Loss before taxation R AE 1B

FE
IT services
IT BR#%
Software
Trading of development
IT and solution Software
components BH#FE  outsourcing Consolidated
ITRHES ANBRER BHME Fe
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
1,239,465 973,105 188,455 2,401,025
75,487 (169,599) 4,477 (89,635)
8,367
13,627
(237)
(9,284)
(6,101)
(83,263)
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e

Bt 355 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEZZ—

8.

“E+-RA=+—RHItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

8. ZoEER ®
DERAREE(E)
BE—T—— G+ H=+—HIF

FEF
IT services
IT AR 75
Software
Trading of  development
T and solution Software
components B{FF%  outsourcng  Consolidated
TTHES MR A = BN Ra
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue DA 963,443 1,133,662 124,477 2,221,582
Segment profit (loss) SR A (&) 73,994 (2,804) 3,973 75,163
Other income, gains and Hplg A
losses Wik K g8 13,346
Share of profit of an NG
associate gl 705
Central administration costs  H1 SR 1T B AR (6,408)
Interest expenses MEZH (15,029)
Profit before taxation BRI A 67,777

Miak: ERAmERE2ROME SRR
ABREIMEBEP °

Note: All of the segment revenue reported for both years was
from external customers.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit (loss) represents the profit mainly earned
by/loss from each segment without allocation of other
income, gains and losses including mainly net foreign
exchange gain/loss and interest income, loss arising from
modification of the terms of redeemable convertible
preferred shares, fair value change in conversion option
derivatives embedded in redeemable convertible preferred
shares, loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
and loss on disposal of a subsidiary, share of profit of an
associate and loss of a jointly controlled entity, central
administration costs including directors’ remuneration and
interest expenses. This is the measure reported to the chief
operating decision maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

DHEER (@)
DEBMAREE ()

R SR R BRI RE 3 At
AEBEABRR -2 2 8E 7
(BR)ESIRIEMMEN, 8%
BoEE - ERARDBECEMBA
Woa K B e (X B B A IME &%
BBRRMEBIA - BRI ATEE
AIRIRE e IRIRRE L 2 B8 - B
NI B8 3 R4 BB SR R AR T A
TENRFHEES  HEVE K
ERRENEREEE—KMBA
BIEER)  BABE R RDEF &
HFRZEHERER - HRITEAAR
(BREZHFM) MFEFRX - 1tR
AEBLERREZRADEER
FFHERBERM TR
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

8. ZEER &’
DHEEERAER

TXHINAEERA 2HEE D
N ZBEERBENDN -

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

liabilities by operating and reportable segment.

At 31 December 2012 R-E——FF+—H=+—H

IT services

IT R#%

Software
Trading of development

IT and solution Software

components MBI  outsourcing Consolidated
ITTHES HBERLR BnHie RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
ASSETS EE
Segment assets DEEE 158,536 562,717 42,300 763,553
Property, plant and MmE - BER
equipment ] 64,623
Interest in an associate i RNEIL S 128,489
Interest in a jointly PRI
controlled entity B 122,629
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRE S 1,184,761
Pledged bank deposits BRI ITER 14,786
Prepaid lease payments BNHEERIE 39,020
Other unallocated assets HRDEEE 17,455
Consolidated total assets 4B BEEE 2,335,316
LIABILITIES =i
Segment liabilities PEERE 39,014 430,293 11,715 481,022
Taxation payable e 118 11,717
Redeemable convertible AJ BB [ AT 2 %
preferred shares B 64,961
Derivative financial PTESR
instrument TA 30,857
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIEAE 19,140
Other unallocated liabilities ~ E A D AL & & 22,337
Consolidated total liabilities #4348 (&4 %5 630,034
124

/ INSPUR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED / Annual Report 2012



8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2011

ASSETS
Segment assets

Property, plant and
equipment

Interest in an associate

Interest in a jointly
controlled entity

Bank balances and cash

Other unallocated assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Taxation payable

Redeemable convertible
preferred shares

Derivative financial
instruments

Deferred tax liabilities

Other unallocated liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

&E
/'\#-Eé?iz

R 1
EA B A TTE
LRI B
$ =
RITHEBR LT ®
Hi AR DB & E

SlEaE

EHTREA

A o] A
=5

MTEEMTA

EXEHRBERR
Ht R BRI

meRAERR

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

8. ZEEHR ®
PHEEERAG®E)

R —E——F+_HA=+—H
IT services
IT AR %
Software
Trading of  development
IT  and solution Software
components FEFE  outsourcng  Consolidated
TEHES: HNBALR ;e Ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET FET
108,761 679,978 47,118 835,857
21,339
114,219
122,175
1,255,855
5,608
2,355,053
62,227 324,488 4,227 390,942
16,869
63,519
9,600
22,668
12,368
515,966
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to operating segments, other
than property, plant and equipment for Group
administrative purpose, interest in an associate,
interest in a jointly controlled entity, bank balances
and cash, pledged bank deposits, prepaid lease
payments and other assets including taxation
recoverable, certain non-trade portion of amounts
due from related parties, prepayments and deposits.

o all liabilities are allocated to operating and reportable
segments, other than taxation payable, redeemable
convertible preferred shares, derivate financial
instruments, deferred tax liabilities and other liabilities
including certain non-trade portion of amounts due
to related parties and other payable in relation to
corporate administration costs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+—HLEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. ZEEH &)
Other segment information Hith o EE R
For the year ended 31 December 2012 BE_F——FF+_H=1—HiF
FE
Amounts included in the measure of segment profit (loss) HESHEEN(ER) XS EEER
or segment assets: T ARFIE :
IT services
IT R #%
Software
Trading of development
IT and solution Software
components E#4BIEA outsourcing Total Unallocated Consolidated
Ti#EE BRAIR  8ENE st AOW At

HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET - FET FEx TET FEx

Additions to RENE
property, plant  BERRE
and equipment 16 13,776 915 14,707 44,343 59,050

Depreciaionof ~ #1%  BE &
property, plant RENE

and equipment 169 25,681 1,607 27,457 424 27,881
(Reversal) write 775 (B HUR:

-down of

inventories (287) 1,396 = 1,109 = 1,109

Amortisation of ~ EEREE
other intangible 4

assets — 10,799 3,706 14,505 — 14,505
Impairment loss ~ EERE
on goodwill E#E = 63,915 = 63,915 — 63,915

Impairment loss on  JEURRF
amounts due from &4 T2
customers for  ZEE(E

contract work BB — 3,788 = 3,788 = 3,788
Allowance for bad FIEREE

and doubtful

debts — 2,697 737 3,434 — 3,434
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2012 (continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision

maker but not included in the measure of segment profit

(loss) or segment assets and not allocated to any operating

and reportable segment.

Interest in an associate
Share of profit of an associate

Interest in a jointly controlled entity
Share of loss of a jointly controlled entity

Interest expenses

i RN
FEAG &
R EE RS
e FE[R
MBI H

FBO R
AR
&= -
51
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PHEER ®)
Hih o BEER ()

BE—F——F1+-A=+—HIF
FE (8)

FELERREEHFTERHEER
B \*E,@%IJ(JEESTE)%“*Eﬁ)’ZH—;
WARFT A B W &S B EE(] A 23R
KrENE IEZZD—F o

HK$°000
FET
128,489
13,627
122,629
(237)
(6,101)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011

Amounts included in the measure of segment profit or
segment assets:

Additions to
property, plant
and equipment

Depreciation of
property, plant
and equipment

Write-down of
inventories

Amortisation of
other intangible
assets

Impairment loss
on amounts due
from customers

for contract work

Allowance for bad
and doubtful
debts

AENF
BE KRR

nx - BE R
REME

7R

H{t &
BESH

EREFEH
TENE
REBE

RERRE

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

8. ZEEHR ®
HibpEER (8)
Hr—_FE——fFF+_-_HA=+—HI

FE
AEN RN D REERT AR
FRIE
IT services
IT R %5
Software
Trading of ~ development
IT  and solution Software
components  E{FREM  outsourcing Total  Unallocated Consolidated
TnHES BRAAER BB @it AR @t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FET FET FET FET FET
8 19,357 999 20,364 — 20,364
172 28,973 2,978 32,123 427 32,550
6,007 — — 6,007 — 6,007
— 12,619 3,706 16,325 — 16,325
= 4,577 — 4,577 i 4,577
104 1,219 o 1,323 e 1,323
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e

Bt 355 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEZZ—

“E+-RA=+—RHItFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8.

Other segment information (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (continued)

Amounts regularly provided to the chief operating decision
maker but not included in the measure of segment profit
(loss) or segment assets and not allocated to any operating
and reportable segment.

Interest in an associate i RN e
Share of profits of an associate JETEE?A“ Al A
Interest in a jointly controlled entity REREGIE SR
Interest expenses B H

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are currently carried out in the PRC
(excluding Hong Kong), the country of domicile, and Hong
Kong except for some services rendered by the provision
of outsourcing software development services division are
located in other regions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Other segment information (continued)

The Group's revenue from external customers by
geographic location of markets, or customer irrespective
of the origin of the goods/services and information about
the Group's non-current assets by geographic location of

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

8. ZEEHR ®
HESEER (8
TE2FAEEBRBETIERES
FrIEs (i s S, RIS SR ) 2

7 2 SNERER P VR A A R 3% B EE P
EERE D Z IR EERNER -

assets:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
REIMBEFHBA FRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
—E—_—F —-FT——F ZEBE—-—F —_ZT—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FAET FET FHET
Hong Kong &5 1,239,465 963,443 20,298 20,888
The PRC
(excluding Hong Kong), & BJ(&E ff} #b -
(country of domicile) ~ T~BIEEB) 1,017,915 1,163,347 425,378 423,178
Others ) 143,645 94,792 247 248
2,401,025 2,221,582 445,923 444,314

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments.

Information about major customer

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contribution of over 10% of the total sales of the Group
are as follows:

Customer A'’ ZEEA

! Revenue from sales of IT components.

131

BiaE # IBHEETEEAHRLEER

Uﬂﬂ

FEREFER
HEFERE A TEFAR AL
SEHEERTE10% AL :

2012 2011
—E——F —T——%F
HK$000 HK$°000
FET TFET
408,882 332,369
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

LOSSES

Other income
Interest income
Value added tax refund (Note a)

Government subsidies and grants (Note b)

Dividend income from
available-for-sale investments

Other gains and losses:
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain

Net (loss) gain on disposal/written off
of property, plant and equipment

Loss arising from modification
of the terms of redeemable
convertible preferred shares

Fair value change in conversion
option derivatives embedded
in redeemable convertible
preferred shares

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary

Gain on disposal of other
intangible asset

Others

9. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS AND 9.

H bW A
FBMA
BERER(MiEa)
BT 22 8 B 4 B (P RE b)
AftHERE L

B B A

Hiti s R A -

I (&5 18 ) Y a5 B8

HE MEME - BER
Rz (B8R ) Wk F 88

CHREE
A4 i 8 S B AGRAR
EEZ BB

HRAR] B [ AT 2 i 2 SR B
BEETETAZ
RNHEE

HE—RMBLR 2 EE

HEHEMER B E 2 Wt
Hity
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HWA - WaERkER

2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
31,731 24,043
52,195 52,045
5,163 19,118
1,840 1,623
90,929 96,829
(1,154) 208
(144) 44
— (9,600)
(21,257) —
(719) —
1,696 —
631 544
(20,947) (8,804)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES

(continued)

Notes:

(a)

Inspur (Shandong) Electronic Information Company Limited
(“Inspur Shandong Electronic”), Inspur Communication
Information System Limited (“Inspur Communication”),
Shandong Inspur Business System Company Limited
(“Inspur Business System”) and Inspur Group Shandong
Genersoft Incorporation (“Inspur Genersoft”) are engaged
in the business of distribution of self-developed and
produced software. Under the current PRC tax regulation,
it is entitled to a refund of VAT paid for sales of self-
developed software in the PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the amount of
approximately HK$3,962,000 (2011: HK$12,314,000)
represent the subsidies received from the PRC Government
for the purpose of encouraging the development of group
entities engaged in new and high technology sector. The
subsidies received are in substance a kind of immediate
financial support to the group’s entities with no future
related costs and recognised as income when the approval
of the relevant government authority has been obtained.
There are no other conditions attached to the subsidies
granted to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the amount of
approximately HK$1,201,000 (2011: HK$6,804,000)
represent the grants from the Government for funding
of some feasibility studies which benefits the society as a
whole. The grants received are recognised as income when
the related feasibility studies has been completed and the
approval of the relevant Government authority has been
obtained.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

HMWA - Wk ER
&)

iR

(a)

BRHAMILF)EFEEARAR
(DCRMURETF]) - REBER
BERBRARDRAEE])
WHROREE A R RAER AR (DR
BrERA RS FORBSEEILRE
RE AR A BRI E B ®
HOREETREREELRFD
DIHER - REBEBITHEBRB G
Bl EREHE B TTRERMD
RAERETIEMN

Hz—_Z2——F#+-_A=+—H
1IEF E 0 493,962,000 jT(=
T ——4 :12,314,0008 7T ) A
B BB AT URER 2 2Bl - DASRED
RESTREMITESETEAOR
B> SEEEAMKREVEEEES L
BEEMRER  WEHEREA%
BCAR + FEMERR B R AT S0P BE 18
CRRBBBA - NREBMERZE
B 37 4 LA B A A o

BE-ZT—_ft-A=+—H
1IEFE 0 41,201,000 (=
T——4 : 6,804,000/87T)BE
BT U ER RO B - (ERERER
HENBAATEREES - B
W 7 B A SE AKX AR B AT T I A 5T K
EREEBN BRI EEERA
I PNE
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

10. TAXATION 10. HIH
2012 2011
- —T——%
HK$'000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Current tax: BNEATRIE
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBENFH 12,002 11,557
PRC Enterprise Income Tax RS 7,074 9,035
(Over)underprovision in prior years: BEFE
(EBFRRE)
BETR
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBENEH (85) (70)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax R SEFTS 659 1,428
Deferred taxation (note 34) EETIE (M3 34) (3,544) (2,333)
16,106 19,617

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law") and Implementation Regulations of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1
January 2008 onwards.

The statutory tax rate for PRC Enterprise Income Tax of
25% is applied to the Group’s PRC subsidiaries except
for Inspur Communication, Inspur Business System and
Inspur Genersoft. Inspur Communication, Inspur Business
System and Inspur Genersoft are recognised as “New
and High Technology Enterprise” and therefore entitled
to apply a tax rate of 15%. The entitlement of this tax
benefit is subject to renewal by respective tax bureau in
PRC every three years. The latest approval for all of the
PRC subsidiaries enjoying this tax benefit were obtained
for the year ended 31 December 2011. Furthermore,
Inspur Genersoft can enjoy additional 5% reduction in tax
rate starting from the fiscal year ended 31 December 2005
because it is recognised as “State recognised software
enterprise” (BB BAEI B %) since 2005.
The entitlement of this tax benefit is subject to annual
renewal by respective tax bureau in the PRC and the
formal approval for the year ended 31 December 2012
was subsequently obtained in March 2013.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. TAXATION (continued)

Pursuant to the Notice of Ministry of Finance and the State
Administrative of Taxation concerning certain preferential
policies on enterprise income tax (Bf#%[2000]255% (B
2 BRMBER - BRREE) BN ENEITERMERK
BREFERAANWBERE—EEA) B, Inspur
Worldwide (Shandong) Services Limited (“Worldwide
Shandong”), Inspur Worldwide (Qingdao) Services Limited
(“Worldwide Qingdao”) and Inspur Guoyou (Shanghai)
Services Incorporation (“Worldwide Shanghai”), which
are recognised as “Software Enterprise”, are exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax for two years starting
from their respective first profit-making years, followed
by a 50% reduction for the next three years. The first
profit-making year for Worldwide Shandong, Worldwide
Qingdao and Worldwide Shanghai are the fiscal year
ended 31 December 2007, 31 December 2007 and 31
December 2009 respectively. The tax exemption for
Worldwide Shandong and Worldwide Qingdao was ended
in prior year.

The implementation of the EIT Law has no impact on the
tax relief granted to the PRC subsidiaries.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

10. BiIE (@)

BEMHRBEREARGHBERERE
T4 A5 B BEUR /B ACE
1 [2000]25 5% < B B &6 ~ B R Bt
R BHEESBANEERMG
EFENEKEREFERBANK
BERBEERBAYE & - R
BOUE)EERMARA A ([ R
WER D) SRBER(EB)EE 5
ERAR(THRIES D RRHESE
(LB EEREMERAR(SEL
BDHEFIERIEMHEE] B
B EE RN F [E e M F N EA R+
Bl EFTEM - HI& =F Ry o it
FHUR - R ESkaE L8NS
EEFNFEINRBE_SZTLF
+=—A=+—H8 —ZEZtF+=
A=+—HKE-_ZEZAF+ A
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

10. TAXATION (continued)

10. BB (@)

The taxation for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

Tax at the prevailing profits
tax rate of 25%
Tax effect of share of profit
of an associate
Tax effect of share of loss
of a jointly controlled entity
Tax effect of expenses
not deductible for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not
taxable for tax purpose
Tax effect of tax losses
not recognised
Effect of tax relief granted
to PRC subsidiaries
Effect of different tax rates of
group entities operating in
Hong Kong
Underprovision in respect
of previous years
Deferred tax on withholding
tax arising from PRC subsidiaries
Other

Taxation for the year

BB AT (8518 )t 7

BRITAEHRTE 25%
ZBERE

JEMRERE R EIRF 2
M E

FEfR HT%E% TP
82
TTWH%%ZM%%?

g

I

ﬂlh

BARTUA Z sz &

RIERRIGEERZ
TSR &

FR B B B A R JE R IR
TR

REBEE 25 E
ERETER R
-
BEFERETR

o B Y B X A 3R
HHEE 2 EERIA
Hth

AEEBIA
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REBFEWAR  ANFEEZHIAR
B AT (B 1R ) s M B RRN T

2012 2011
—EB-=-F —FT—F
HK$000 HK$'000
FETT FET
(83,263) 67,777
(20,816) 16,944
(3,407) (176)
59 —
29,102 13,859
(1,081) (19,180)
19,795 11,176
(1,673) (2,407)
(5,913) (5,953)
574 1,358

12 1,471
(546) 2,525
16,106 19,617




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

10. TAXATION (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of HK$133,246,000 (2011: HK$54,065,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of such losses at the
end of the reporting period, due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in unrecognised tax
losses are losses of HK$78,381,000, HK$43,523,000
and HK$1,827,000 (2011: nil, HK$43,523,000 and
HK$1,827,000) that will expire in 2017, 2016 and 2015
respectively. Other tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

10. B\ (@)

REFRBPLEER  AEBHEAREH
% 78 &5 18 133,246,000 8 o(— =
——%F : 54,065,000/ 7C) A A A
T AEEF - AR BEEFRIR
BUATER - R ERBLEEB WL E
RZEEBRECHEEE - K
BRREEBEERREBES IR =Z
—+F ZET-RNFRZF—H
% [ jm #5418 78,381,000 7 JT
43,523,000/ 7T % 1,827,000/8 7T
(ZE——%F : T+ 43,523,000/%
7T % 1,827,000 7T) - E M FiIB
BRI ERIPLEE -
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

1. FRA (EE) =F

2012 2011
—E-CfF —E——F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
(Loss) profit for the year has been RNEE (EB) R K
arrived at after charging: R T3S IERED -
Allowance for bad and RIZREE
doubtful debts 3,434 1,323
Reversal of allowance for bad RIZRRE RO
and doubtful debt — (1,281)
Impairment loss on amounts due R P& 4 TIEFIA
from customers for contract work REEE 3,788 4,577
Research and development costs 2 Ak AN 39,405 29,406
Auditor’s remuneration ZEE < 2,000 2,000
Cost of inventories recognised as e SR 8 B A AN 2 Y
expenses in cost of sale FERA(BEFE MR
(including write-down of 1,109,000 7T
inventories of HK$ 1,109,000 (=2 ——4%&F:
(2011: HK$6,007,000)) 6,007,000 %7 )) 1,563,580 1,451,033
Depreciation for property, M - BB REEBTE
plant and equipment 27,881 32,550
Amortisation of prepaid T E B
lease payments 297 —
Less: Prepaid lease payments B BAERTIREN
capitalised into construction BT HE IR
in progress (297) —
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) ExMe(FE12) 4,401 5,077
Other staff costs Hith 8 TAHRA
Salaries and other benefits Fre RHMERN 450,135 344,277
Retirement benefits scheme RIREAET B
contributions 54,011 38,957
Share based payments BN 1,733 8,704
510,280 397,015
Interest expense on redeemable RAEFRNEBHEEZ
convertible preferred shares A f& [l AT R B e AR 2
wholly repayable within five years MERAX 6,101 15,029
Operating lease rentals in respect of WMAERBEIREZ
office premises and staff quarters KERES 19,160 18,333
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+—HLEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERBETHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2011: MI1I0B(ZE——F :8B)EEX
eight) directors were as follows: e RN BT
Other emoluments
HitM &

Performance Retirement
Salaries related  benefits
and other incentive scheme Share
benefits  payments contributions based
Fees HER BRAAMG  BHKER  payment Total
we EtER  KBRE GHEMR RO @t
HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
TiEr TEr TiEr TEr TEr TEr

(note 6)
(Hiit6)
For the year ended HE-E--F
31 December 2012 TZA=1-HAL¥E
Executive Directors BITES
Wang Xingshan (Note 5) TR (FrE5) - 799 - 41 178 1,018
Dong Hailong B8 = 332 1,000 13 71 1,416
Chen Dongfeng R = 832 - 49 143 1,024
Sun Chengtong (Note 2) ki (frsE2) = 529 — 47 — 576
Sun Pishu (Note 2) BAR(FzE2) — 13 = = — 13
Non-Executive Director ~ FH{TES
Samuel Y. Shen (Note 4) Bk (fzEd) = = = = = =
Independent By
Non-Executive Directors ~ F#HTEE
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis B4 120 - - = 7 127
Zhang Tigin B 60 = = = = 60
Dai Ruimin (Note 3) s (fE3) 45 — — — — 45
Meng Xiang Xu (Note 3) AEB(fE3) 15 — — — 7 2
Total gt 240 2,605 1,000 150 406 4,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

12. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERESTHAEME
EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
Other emoluments
Hinie
Performance  Retirement
Salaries related benefits
and other incentive scheme Share
Fees benefits  payments contributions based
ek BREEEN  REEH  payment Total

e HEEN  BEBEE GFEER RhxH st
HK$000  HKSO00  HKSOO0  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS00O
TET  FAT  TAr  TEr  FAr  TAx

(note 6)
(Hiite)
For the year ended HZ-8--F
31 December 2011 TZA=1-HALEE
Executive Directors BITES
Sun Pishu (Note 5) FAR(WizEs) = 450 = = = 450
Wang Xingshan E Il — 695 — 33 897 1,625
Dong Hailong Bk = 200 456 21 359 1,036
Chen Dongfeng REE = 866 = 34 718 1618
Independent By
Non-Executive Directors ~ FH{TEE
Liu Ping Yuan (Note 1) 2R (1) 15 - o 5 36 51
Meng Xiang Xu 3| 60 — — — 36 9%
Wong Lit Chor, Alexis a2 120 = = = 36 156
Zhang Tigin (Note 1) RIRG (M) 45 — — — — 45
Total a5t 240 2,211 456 88 2,082 5,077
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12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

(1) Zhang Tigin was appointed and Liu Ping Yuan resigned as
an independent non-executive director on 1 April 2011.

(2)  Sun Chengtong was appointed and Sun Pishu resigned as
an executive director on 1 April 2012.

(3)  Dai Ruimin was appointed and Meng Xiang Xu resigned as
an independent non-executive director on 1 April 2012.

(4)  Samuel Y. Shen was appointed as an non-executive director
on 1 September 2012.

(5)  Sun Pishu was also the Chief Executive of the Company.
After his resignation, Wang Xingshan is appointed as the
new Chief Executive. Their emoluments disclosed above
include those for services rendered by them as the Chief
Executive.

(6) The performance related incentive payment is determined
as a percentage of turnover derived from trading of IT
components for the two years ended 31 December 2012.

No directors of the Company waived any remuneration
and no remuneration was paid by the Group to any of
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during both
years.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

12. EERRETHAEME

(&)
BaE

(1) MRZZE—FMA—H ' K
BRI AmMEFIRETBEIEH
1TEE o

2) R-ZZT——FmWA—HB  BZRA
EZ I BMELBEIHNITES -

3) MZZT——-FMA—H: JHIxHK
BZAMAFEBRERIERNITE
%o

4 RZE——FhA—B BIE
ERERIFHITES -

(5) BRAKITNABARNRRNITHAE o
REBHER  ETRIVEZERH
TTERABEL o LA £ 3R ER M) 150 5 7 B
BREABEEEETHREEMEMH
B 4a T FT B o

(6) HIRIFH M EBNFIETIRIGE
EZE-——_F+-A=+—H1k
MEFEITTHEESREEERE
B DLLERE -

REZMFER - RARHEZEENR
ZWEERIBNE - M AR E TR &R
EESI A ESRSI B EN
AZRER B 5 15 5 A B ) 22D S Bl
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

13. EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2011: three) was director of the Company
whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note
12 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2011:
two) highest paid individuals were as follows:

K B A A& A

Salaries and other benefits e
Retirement benefit

BRREFFTEI R

scheme contributions

Their remuneration were within the following bands:

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BLE

1,500,000 /7T

No remuneration was paid by the Group to any of the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during both years.
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EEME

ERE&=HFMALH  Edh=

B(ZF——%

B HF

B =15

=R)BARRFE
BRI £

E1R2-BTIWME(ZT——F:
MB) &= H A TR EF BN

T

2012 2011
—B-——F —T——%F
HKS$°000 HK$ 000
FHET FAET
2,401 2,296
14 12
2,415 2,308

BREFEF T A IA T E
2012 2011
—2-——F -—T —F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EE2A EE2A
2 2

REFEAR - AEEHEFRAO LR
SHEMA LTINS IERREI KRS
DA B 2 1% 55 Ay B0 22 sk

RERA1E -
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e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

14. DIVIDEND 14. RE
2012 2011
—g--F —B——F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as distribution FRNERH
during the year: REDIK
2011 final dividend - HK$0.012 —T—FE8RKRHY
(2011: 2010 final dividend B2 —0.0128 7T
- HK$0.01) per share (ZZ——%:
—E-TFER
REIR S —0.01%7T) 50,489 37,916
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final REWALEERR  EFCERK
dividend of HK$0.006 in respect of the year ended 31 BHE_T——F+_A=+—
December 2012 (2011: final dividend of HK$0.012 in B IFF € & kK H A% 2.0.006 5
respect of the year ended 31 December 2011) per share T(ZE——F HEZF—F
has been proposed by the directors and is subject to TZA=T—HIEFESRRR
approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual £.0.01287T) - HAFRERENED

general meeting.

KA FORRBFAS EHERT
AEE °
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

15. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per
share attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the (loss) profit for the year attributable to owners of
the Company and on the number of shares as follows:

Number of shares RHEE

Weighted average number AESRERNER)
of ordinary shares for the BN FTER R 2 hntE
purpose of basic (loss) I EmARE B
earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential BIEEE
ordinary shares: TRk E -
- share options — AR

Weighted average number TESREE(EE)
of ordinary shares for the B
purpose of diluted (loss) EEREA

earnings per share

The incremental shares from assumed exercise of share
options and conversion of the Company’s redeemable
convertible preferred shares are excluded in calculation of
the diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 since their exercise or conversion would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31 December 2011 did not assume the conversion
of the Company'’s redeemable convertible preferred shares
since their exercise would result in an increase in earnings
per share.
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15. ER(ER)ER

AREHER ARIETBRA N EAR K
BE(BR)BANIRERNRARHEAS
AR A (B8 ) R & T 51 At
Z}BEE

2012 2011
—E——F —T——F
‘000 ‘000

TR T
4,207,659 3,861,069
— 16,720
4,207,659 3,877,789

KA REBIEETERARAN
] R (2] A A i A8 S A 1S DA B R A 428
mENITERREBEE_T——_F
TZA=+t—BLFEESKESE
BREER - DHRREETES
EINGERERERRD

A A B R i [ AT B R i fE =
BBAIEN  BEEEE—T——
FH-A=1T—BHIFESREE
B By I B R R R R A R AT E )
A] RSB SERY o
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e MR RMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CosT

At 1 January 2011

Additions

Disposals

Redlassified as held
for sale

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2011

Additions
Disposalsfwritten off
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2012

DEPRECIATION
At 1 January 2011
Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposals
Redlassified as held

for sale
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2011

Charge for the year

Eliminated on disposals/
written off

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2012

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

WA
RZT—F-F-H
5

(e
ENARAR{ELE

EXHE

RoF—4
tZA=1-A
25

HE /i
[

RZT-Zf
tZA=t-A

il
RZ5—%-A-R
RERH

it RS

A BARELE

B
RZT——F
tZA=t-H
AEEYH
HERHE /0
E R
RZT-Zf
tZA=t-H

FAEE
R-E-——%
+-A=1-H

RZT——F
+-A=t-H

BE-Z——HF+-A=+—HIFE
16. 1% - BERRE
Furniture,
Leasehold Machinery fixtures

landand  Leasehold and  and office Construction

building improvements  Specialised  equipment  equipment Motor in
gL fiE  equipment B8k G #£ER vehicles progress Total
i b EL LGEY R i e fRIE szt
HK$000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HK$000 HKS 000
T A FEr A FEr FEr FAr A
21,357 3649 73,929 21,203 42,609 1718 - 164,465
- 2,503 7,882 5,000 4979 - - 20,364
- - - (1,730) (376) (368) - (2.474)
— - — (1,129) = - - (1,129
5 195 2,865 853 2,138 62 - 6,118
21,362 6,347 84,676 24197 49,350 1412 - 187,344
- 1376 4,060 6,391 2871 3 44343 59,050
- - (43,085) (9,060) (1.838) (214) - (54,197)
1 32 523 137 286 8 (1) 976
21,363 7,755 46,174 21,665 50,675 1,209 44332 193173
420 1,593 36,741 6,052 17,407 1,128 - 63,341
432 1479 17,034 5,844 7495 266 — 32,550
- - - (1,55) (%) (357) - (2,005)
— - — (492) = - - (492)
- 124 1,644 291 1,070 43 - 3172
852 3,19 55,419 10,143 25876 1,080 T 96,566
440 1,763 12,283 5488 7779 128 - 21,881
= - (43,082) (8.743) (1,159 (199 - (53,183)
— 18 320 59 157 6 = 560
1292 4977 24,940 6,947 32,653 1,015 — 71,824
20,071 2,178 21,234 14,718 18,022 194 44332 121,349
20,510 3,151 29,257 14,054 23474 332 - 90,778
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BHEZ

16.

17.

Z——Ft+ZRA=1+—HItFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT -
CONTINUED (continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other
than construction in progress are depreciated, after taking
into account of their estimated residual values, on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over shorter of 15 years or

and building terms of leases
Leasehold improvements Over shorter of 4 years or
terms of leases
Specialised equipment  20% - 25%
Machinery and
equipment 10% - 20%
Furniture, fixtures
and office equipment
10% - 33'/,%

Motor vehicles 10% - 20%

The leasehold land and building held by the Group is
situated in Hong Kong under medium-term lease. As the
leasehold interest in land cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the leasehold
interest in land continued to be accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Analysed for reporting MEBAMEBELAT
purposes as: BIEDHT
Current asset MENE EE
Non-current asset EREBEE
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16.

17.

W - BERRE ®

REBETRSRER  LAWxE -
B KRR B (R TAZRRSM) A
BERRRATNEIERTE

HELH BE15FHEEHR
kEF (UBREEAZE)
HEWE HBadFxmlEHR
=& (G HEA%E)
HAEXME  20%-25%
28 & 10%-20%
B
B~ F 10%-337,%
B Rt
UNSL]
E 10%-20%

AEEEBHEE L REFIRTH
BHOFAE - AR L HEEZS T 6
ELMEFTHBRASEDSRE - 8

BANEERE
2012 2011
—g—-F -7
HK$'000 HK$°000
Fit F#T
874 —
38,146 —
39,020 —




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

17. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued)

The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise a leasehold
land in the PRC under medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group was in the process
of obtaining the relevant land use right certificate for
the leasehold land. The land use right certificate was
subsequently obtained on 24 January 2013 without
incurring additional significant costs.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

17. EAHEERE (&)

AEBMANEEFEBS KR HE
ETRAENEELH -

RZE——F+=ZA=+—H" 'K
SErEENSHETMEREL
HF AR c HER T —=F—
A+ HBRELHERER © M
REAHMBEEERAR -

18. GOODWILL 18. BE

HK$°000

FET

At 1 January 2011 H-E——fF—A—H 77,174
Reclassified as held for sale BN BRRED (2,457)
Exchange adjustments bE 54, 8 2,932

At 31 December 2011 R-T——F+-A=t+—H 77,649
Impairment loss recognised (note 19) ERERBEREE (H:19) (63,915)
Exchange adjustments b 5, S B 454

At 31 December 2012 R_E——_F+_-_A=+—H 14,188

Particulars regarding impairment testing on goodwill are
disclosed in note 19.

BEBEANRAZFERHE 1935

=

0
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL 19. FERERNR
For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill set out WEABE - W 18AEFPERD
in note 18 has been allocated to the cash generating units PEREEBHRABERBRAIRZEAS
("CGUs") of software development and solution. The EESBM(REEELESM]) - B
carrying amounts of goodwill as at 31 December 2012 —E——F+ZA=1T—HHET
allocated to these CGUs are as follows: ZEReEABMN 2 HEREDEN
™~
2012 2011
—E—_—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Software development and solution R EAR T 3R
- Inspur Communication (Unit A) —RER{E (ABELL) — 36,076
- Inspur Genersoft and —REABRAERMY R
its subsidiaries (Unit B) HEft@ A (BEAL) 14,188 14,108
- Inspur E-governments Software — RHEFRE M
Limited (“Inspur E-goverment”) nAE ( DREETF
(Unit C) sl ) (CEfL) — 2,457
- Digital media busines — ISR TS
(Unit D) (DEAL) — 27,465
14,188 80,106
Reclassified as held for sale (Unit C) SERFRELE (CEAL) — (2,457)
14,188 77,649
As at 31 December 2012, the management has carried out RZF-—ZF+ZA=+—HIEF
the impairment assessment on these CGUs as follows: K BREEHZSHSELEMNE
T2 REFHOT -
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19. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

(continued)
Unit A and Unit D

The recoverable amounts of Unit A and Unit D have been
determined on the basis of higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use calculation. The Group performed
impairment assessment by estimating the value in use of
the cash generating unit in which the goodwill and the
intangible assets are attributable to, which approximately
the fair value less cost to sell. Their recoverable amounts
are based on certain similar key assumptions. The value
in use calculations used cash flow projections based on
the revised financial budgets approved by management
covering 5-year period, and a discount rate of 21%
(2011:25%). No growth rate is expected for the cash
flows beyond the 5-year period. Due to the unexpected
keen competition for technician and staff with advance
technology knowledge which drive up their salaries
drastically and change of suppliers’ selection criteria by
certain major customers, tender of certain orders were
lost while the orders obtained were completed at a
lower margin, the management revised the estimation
of cash flows from that of prior year. Such estimation is
based on the units’ past performance and management’s
expectation for the market development. Since the
carrying amount of goodwill and relevant assets allocated
to Unit A and Unit D exceeds their relevant recoverable
amounts based on the revised cash flow projections, the
management has allocated impairment of HK$36,289,000
and HK$27,626,000 to reduce the carrying amount of
goodwill allocated to CGU of software development and
solution arising from acquisition of Inspur Communication
and Digital media business and no further impairment
being allocated to other relevant assets of Unit A and Unit
D.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

19. HEREIR®)

AEK DEfY

AFEN K D EfL 2 A E & B8 TH R
R R SRR L A S B4 P (B B PR
E2RSENE -  AEEMGFHE
rEVEERGRESELEMLZ
EREEERFERLEXARE
%)) REMmETRE RS o ATk E
CRDERETRAUIERRME
EoEREBEENFERAERE
BEMBLEAFRETVBEE
MIRERIBA - FIRERR21%(=
T——F:25%) AHRAFR
Bentg@gk bR ABE
R A B (H A RIRIR S K F ¥
ERF)NRME KRB TS
FEMERNRE T EE2EPEHH
EENEERENES  ZTF]E
HY BEAR SR BT BT S X R B BIS BV RT
BRERE  RitERESHEFR
ERAEFHERERT » &b THER
BUBARAMEEBYMSEE
MWIEH - RO TABMNMDE
2 B2 R BHEENKREERS
BEENEERT RS RIAR A EE
Al EEER - MEEED S ERE
36,289,000/ 7T } 27,626,000/8
TERURUE BB R B 5 I 2RS4 A
EBMELY D EEERMFFHERE
RTENASELEUNBERLY
EBEAFRMLDEMMEMBHE
EDBE—FRIE -
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ma

Bt 355 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEZZ—

19.

“E+-RA=+—RHItFE

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL

(continued)

The basis of recoverable amount of the Unit B and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below.

Unit B

The recoverable amounts of Unit B have been determined
on the basis of value in use calculations. Its recoverable
amount is based on certain key assumptions. The value
in use calculations use cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period, and a discount rate of 25% (2011:
25%). Unit B's cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a steady 3% growth rate. This growth
rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for
relevant industry. A key assumption for the value in use
calculation is the growth rate, which is determined based
on past performance and management'’s expectations for
the market development. As at 31 December 2012, the
Group determined that there is no impairment for Unit
B (2011: nil). Management believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the respective carrying amount of Unit B to exceed
the respective recoverable amount of Unit B.
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19. HERENHE®)

BB AT WO B EENE T
ZiERA R BT -

Unit B

BB A @B DREERE
B E ERETIERIME

cEREBEEMNEERENERE
F%M&Wﬂi%%%%%ﬁﬁﬁ
TR RITIRE25% (=T ——4F -
25%) - BEMAFHENRET R
3% REERREHERFL - %I
RERTGENBRBEITEERBR M A
BHABITENTFORMEREX -
ERBEEAEZIZBERASRES
ERAREEEHMSERMNAY
MEBEEZERR R_FT—ZF
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COSsT
At 1 January 2011

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2011

Disposal
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2012

AMORTISATION
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2011

Charge for the year
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2011

Charge for the year
Eliminated on disposal
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2012

CARRYING AMOUNTS
At 31 December 2012

At 31 December 2011

20. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

A
RZE—F
—A—H

BB 3 A

RZT——F
+=H=+—H

~A—F
REFXH
5%

N—E——F
+=-A=+—H
AEETH
R
P& W SR
RZZ——F
F=H=—H
BREE
RZE——F
+=H=+—H
R-F——F
F=H=r—E

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

20. Hh B\ EE

Registered Customer Customer
software contracts base Total
E M4 EFEHN EFE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
60,727 21,890 57,385 140,002
2,307 633 — 2,940
63,034 22,523 57,385 142,942
(5,652) — — (5,652)
359 97 = 456
57,741 22,620 57,385 137,746
33,549 21,890 29,594 85,033
12,619 = 3,706 16,325
1,458 633 — 2,091
47,626 22,523 33,300 103,449
10,799 = 3,706 14,505
(1,696) — — (1,696)
269 97 = 366
56,998 22,620 37,006 116,624
743 - 20,379 21,122
15,408 = 24,085 39,493
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

20.

21.

22.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The intangible assets of the Group were acquired as part
of business combinations in prior years.

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives.
Intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Customer base 10 years

Customer contracts 3 months to 3 years

Registered software 5 years

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The balance represents investments in two unlisted entities
established in the PRC. The Group held 10% interests in
Shandong Aerospace Information Limited (“Shandong
Aerospace”) and 5.56% interests in Beijing Shenzhou
Software Technology Limited (“Beijing Shenzhou").
Shangdong Aerospace and Beijing Shenzhou are principally
engaged in software development.

They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot
be measured reliably.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

20. EMEEEE (&)
GE AEBRBEREE  EA
RO —I5 o
bitEREEMEREAER - U
HEEN AT E RS

BEPE T
BEFEH “EAE=%F
E st ekt hF

21. AIHHERE

HEERIER MR BN 2 TR
AR E - RE&EEF A Shandong
Aerospace Information Limited
([Shandong Aerospace ]) 10% KJ
# 2= & Beijing Shenzhou Software
Technology Limited([Beijing
Shenzhou])5.56% &) # z= o
Shangdong Aerospace } Beijing
Shenzhou = 2R E U ET -

HREBAFENGFEEREE
R ARRIEFRA/EBRNTFED
AR ST E - M EMABRNER
HEHE B I ANIRURERT £ -

22. REFE N TR 2@

Cost of investment in an
associate - unlisted

Share of post-acquisition profits
and other comprehensive
income, net of dividends received

Exchange adjustments

2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HKS$°000 HK$'000
FET FEIT
REEER R ZKRE
AR —3EET 126,601 126,601
FEAG W B & A1 S E A
2HEBA - Bk
B R (8,380) (22,007)
M H TR 10,268 9,625
128,489 114,219
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22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

As at 31 December 2012 and 2011,
interest in the following associate:

22.
the Group had

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered

capital held
Form of Country of by the Group
business registration rEEHEE
Name of entity structure and operation &R
BRER BWEEBT AR EERR REEZBAL
Qingdao Sino-foreign PRC 30%
Lejin Inspur owned enterprise
Digital ("SFOE")
Communication RINE B R
Limited? ( [HINEE
("Qingdao Lejin”) %] )
a%mAEﬂ%%
BEARA
((%%%ﬁj)
@ The english name of the associate is for identification

purpose only.

Included in the cost of investment in an associate as

at 31 December 2012 was goodwill of approximately

HK$19,213,000 (2011:

HK$19,105,000) arising on

acquisition of Qingdao Lejin in prior year. The movement

of goodwill is set out below.

Cost

At 1 January 2011
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2011
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2012

XA

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

REEE QT 2B (E)

R-B——FER-_F——F+_-4
=t—H AEERTIBZERF]
AL

Proportion
of voting
power held
FREE
2B

Principal activities
TEEK

30% Manufacturing and sale
of wireless GSM mobile
phones and value added
software for mobile
phones
BUERHERR
GSMBEEE K&
BEE LAY

o OBERRMREXREERER

—E—ZFFZA=F+—HAR—
MHEARAKEZRABRE A
FHESELSEECHEY
19,213,000 (=& — — F :
19,105,00087T) - i E 2 & 7
IR o

HK$°000

FET
A—ZE——F—HF—H 18,406
[E 5 K 699
RZE—F+-_A=+—H 19,105
[E i A EK 108
REE === B = 19,213
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

22. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 22. REFE QT 2= (5)
The summarised financial information in respect of the REEE QR HBERBIEE
Group's associate was set out below: FIGAT
2012 2011
—E——F —E——F
HK$000 HK$000
FET T
Total assets BMEE 765,039 1,305,317
Total liabilities waE (400,787) (988,270)
Net assets BEFE 364,252 317,047
Group's share of net assets N ST
of an associate NAIZ BEFE 109,276 95,114
Revenue for the year ESNIL PN 2,542,721 5,604,331
Profit for the year F A F 45,425 2,350
Group's share of result FRAREE RS
of an associate for the year NN e ¥ 13,627 705
23. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 23. REFZEFIER ZES
ENTITY
2012 2011
—E——fF —E——F
HKS$000 HK$ 000
FAET FET
Cost of investment in a jointly RERZEFIERZIRE
controlled entity - unlisted AR —3E b 122,175 122,175
Share of post-acquisition losses and FE(R I B 12 B 18 I B
other comprehensive income ZmEURA (237) =
Exchange adjustments bE H, 735 691 =
122,629 122,175

/ INSPUR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED / Annual Report 2012 154



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

23. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED 23. ARPEEFIER 2R ®)
ENTITY (continued)
As at 31 December 2012 and 2011, the Group had RZE——FR=F——F+=A4
interest in the following jointly controlled entity: =+—8 ' AEER LRz
ERBEER

Proportion of
nominal value
of registered

capital held Proportion of
Form of Country of by the Group voting
business registration REE%E power held
Name of entity structure and operation BEMER BRERE Principal activity
BEREH BREBTX AR EERER REEZEDL ZEDL FEEE
% %

Shandong SFOE PRC 33 33 Trading of computer
Inspur Cloud RGBS H components from
Computing February 2012
Industry E-Z——F_HA8
Investment BEEEMTY
Co., Ltd.*

WRRAEEEHE
EFEREFRAR"

*‘ The English name of the jointly controlled entity is for # LR I B B8 A 2 30 A TR A i ol

identification purpose only.

The summarised financial information in respect of the
Group's interest in a jointly controlled entity which is

ZN-S

Al e
[ 7 S R 122 1) R O A 2 (3%

RESEAR) B2 ER B

accounted for using equity method is set out below:

Current assets

Non-current assets

Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

ZHHWOT :
2012 2011
—E-—F —E——%F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
mENEE 116,866 122,175
SERBE E 10,191 —
mEEE (4,264) —3
SERBEE (164) a
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

23. INTEREST IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED

23. RHEEHERE o EREE)

ENTITY (continued)
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Income recognised in profit or loss 8 AR Z A 35,237 —
Expenses recognised in profit or loss e AR Z X (35,474) —
Other comprehensive income H2mEUA — —
Note: The jointly controlled entity was established by the end of et . ZARZHE : RN T ——
December 2011 and commenced operation in current year. FTZARKY  AFER
Ih e iE
24. INVENTORIES 24. 7K
2012 2011
—E——& —T——F
HK$000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Raw materials R 17,506 13,814
Work in progress & m 1,095 7,349
Finished goods held for sale FELE 2 2K 129,708 75,920
148,309 97,083
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
Trade and bills receivables
Trade and bills receivables 5 W BR TR & e U ZE i
Less: Allowance for bad
and doubtful debts o RIBEREE

The Group allows a credit period of 30 to 210 days (2011:
30 to 210 days) to its customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for bad and
doubtful debts presented based on the invoice dates at
the end of the reporting period, which approximated the
respective revenue recognition dates. The analysis includes
those classified as part of a disposal group held for sale as
at 31 December 2011.

0 to 30 days 0&30H

31 to 60 days 31260H

61 to 90 days 61290H

91 to 120 days 91&120H

121 to 180 days 1212180 H

Over 180 days 180 HMA £
157
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

25. EZRUIRR R EWREE

BEZRWERREEKRERE
2012 2011
—E-——F —E——F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
269,413 218,979
(18,850) (16,085)
250,563 202,894

AEB-—RBRABEFPIREMA30E210
H(ZZ——4% :30£210H) K
ZEEH - EZRWRFOR R4
HRREEHEEZIARBRR
BHRESWOT @  2/REERR
HEAKEER B EES - 28
R_ZE——F+-_A=+—HHH
RFEHELEHAER —HBHHIFIE o

2012 2011
—E-—fF —E——F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET T
133,960 101,622
18,426 10,763
4,986 9,736
5,638 9,147
15,318 8,750
72,235 66,383
250,563 206,401
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Trade and bills receivables (continued)

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses
an external credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customers. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. 69% (2011: 67%) of the trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have the
best credit scoring attributable under the external credit

scoring system used by the Group.

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$65,856,000 (2011: HK$56,266,000), which are past
due at the end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the amounts are
still considered recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances. The average age of these

trade receivables is 257 days (2011: 238 days).

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired (based on the invoice date)

121 - 180 days 1212180 H
Over 180 days 180 BIA E
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25. ESEWEBRR R EWEE

FEMRBERHEE @)

BEZRBERKEREE

(%)

REMERFE A - AEEHEA
IAEETS ZRTHBERFZ
EEExX BETREFPEELR %
FTEFPZEELREFIDBERT
MR BBEAEERABZINAE
BEFDELS  69% (T ——F:
67% ) &) & 5 E UK BR FXBE 4 38 2R
ERE BEESEEND -

REBZ B HREWRREHBDIERE
BRI - ZEEBRFRREELY
#65,856,000 8L (=T ——F :
56,266,00057C) + REWMELEE
HE®H  BERAEEZERIESEA
B EZESBERANAKRE @ &K
NEEWEFREBBIELBME -
REBVWERZEEHFTE EMIE
o ZEE HEWER TR
#257B(=ZF——%F :238H) °

WRIFZHFEAHEBRERREZ E

BIEWIR 2 ARl
2012 2011
=F-—=F 7
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAIT
4,401 7,395
61,455 48,871
65,856 56,266
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 25. ESRWERR R ERREE
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS RHEMRBERMEE &)
(continued)

Trade and bills receivables (continued) ESREWNRAKREKREZE
(%)
Movement in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts RIEEBR IR e < %
2012 2011
—E—C—fF —F——fF
HKS$000 HK$°000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of year FHER 16,085 15,605
Allowances recognised on receivables B W AR MR 2 B 3,434 1,323
Amounts written off A [T U [l
as uncollectible WOR 2 X IE (737) —
Reversed of allowance RIZER B O]
for bad and doubtful debt — (1,281)
Exchange adjustments ME W SE 68 438
Balance at the end of year FRAERR 18,850 16,085
Included in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts are RERREEERBENAFZZE
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate WEEZEEER SHREES
balance of HK$7,577,000 (2011: HK$7,577,000) which 7,577,000 (= T — —
have been under dispute. The Group does not hold any 7,577,000/ 7T ) » AN&EE I & 5
collateral over these balances. ZEERTFE TR o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEZZ—

“E+-RA=+—RHItFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)
Other receivables

Other receivables are unsecured, interest free and
recoverable within one year.

In determining the recoverability of trade and other
receivables, the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade and other receivables from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting
period. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to
the customer base being large and unrelated. Accordingly,
the directors believe that there is no further allowance
required in excess of the allowance for bad and doubtful
debts.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables are
advances to staff for daily operations of HK$12,559,000
(2011: HK$14,800,000) and other PRC tax receivables of
HK$10,800,000 (2011: HK$15,082,000).
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25. EZRBIRM R EREE

REMARBERMEE (&)

H 1 FE IR R =R

Hip RS EEA - B KA
R—FA%KE -

#E\EQEEHQ@ 2 5 I B A W AR K
’ KEI%FEQWA&WZEQS
EI ERPEZEEESHREMBENR
ZT:.TE%“@U HRNE PR
fﬁﬁﬁ,ﬁﬁ%@ WEERRI T &
e Bt - EFWR ﬁﬁ?%%ﬁ!ﬁﬁéﬁ
S - BAVEH B AR B -

ERFIE - e REMERERR

BEMBELEINETER
12%9wmam( T——F:
14,800,000 7% 7T ) K & U E fth A B
% 810,800,000 (= T — —
4 :15,082,000/87T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND 25. ESRWERR R ERREE
OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS RHEMRBERMEE &)
(continued)

Amounts due from related companies FE R BE 1t B FRIE
2012 2011
—EB—=F —ET——%F
HK$'000 HK$°000
FET FAET
Amounts due from related companies: FEUW B A R FUR ¢
Trading in nature 2o5ME
Fellow subsidiaries EESEhy= NG 144,272 98,926
Immediate holding company BEERAR] — 33,896
Ultimate holding company BREPEIR A A 11,310 17,202
155,582 150,024
Non-trading in nature FEHHEE
Fellow subsidiaries ngﬁﬁ%"_ 5,945 1,553
Ultimate holding company Sl /NG 655 2,056
Non-controlling interest of a subsidiary WJ%@T?H PR RS — 20
6,600 3,629
Total amounts due from JEJ%Z EapEd
related companies NI CEE L] 162,182 153,653
Analysed as: ERATBIEDHT
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries JE UL [F] &5 [ B /B
NRIFRIA 150,217 100,479
Amount due from
immediate holding company JEW B BEE IR A RIFRIA — 33,896
Amount due from
ultimate holding company JE LB 2 4% “”TTJ\IE 11,965 19,258
Amount due from non-controlling WP A~
interest of a subsidiary FE4E Hﬂ& i — 20

Total amounts due from
related companies A P NGIE SR 162,182 153,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Amounts due from related companies

(continued)

The Group allows an average trade credit period of 30 to
210 days (2011: 30 to 210 days) to its trade receivables
due from its fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding

company and ultimate holding company. The following
is an aged analysis of trade receivables due from related
companies presented based on the invoice date at the
end of the reporting period. The analysis includes those

amounts due from related companies which are trading in

nature classified as part of a disposal group held for sale as

at 31 December 2011.

Amounts due from
fellow subsidiaries
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 210 days

Amount due from
immediate holding company
0 - 30 days

Amount due from ultimate
holding company
0 - 30 days
31 - 60 days
61 - 90 days
91 - 210 days
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& Wi [R) £= [ /B8 1 B 308

0£30H
31260H
61290H
91£210H

PR B AR
0£30H

M AR R R IR
0£30H
31Z60H
61Z90H
9122108
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25. ESEWEBRR R EWEE

FEMRBERHEE @)

FEW B8E N R RRTE ()

AEEREKRASEBHBAR - B
BEERARIRGEZERATESE
BRI FH30BE210A (=
T——HF:30BE210H)MEE
H - LT REWBELARE SRR
RERPEE A URER BEER
P2 BRER DT - DM BRER=F
——F+-_A=+—REBESMHE
DEEVE AL S48 5 A fE Uk B

NEIFIA -

2012 2011
—E-C—F —E——F
HK$000 HK$000
FAET FET
129,830 132,861
9,346 4,337
1,936 —
3,160 3,112
144,272 140,310
= 33,896

2,331 816
2,075 1,501
1,003 125
5,901 14,884
11,310 17,326
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25. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND

OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

Amounts due from related companies
(continued)

The trade receivables due from fellow subsidiaries,
immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are neither past due nor impaired at the end of
the reporting period. These fellow subsidiaries, immediate
holding company and ultimate holding company have
strong financial position with continuous subsequent
settlements and there have been no historical default of
payments by respective fellow subsidiaries, immediate
holding company or ultimate holding company. In
determining the recoverability of trade receivables due
from fellow subsidiaries, immediate holding company
and ultimate holding company, the Group considers any
change in the credit quality of the amounts from related
companies from the date credit was initially granted up to
the end of the reporting period.

The amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, ultimate
holding company and non-controlling interest of a
subsidiary which are non-trading in nature are unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand. In the opinion of
the directors, it is expected to be recoverable within twelve
months.

25.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

ESEWRIA R ERERE
REMARBEMERE (&)

FEWREE R AR

NI (48)

EWWEIWE“ﬂ~E%ﬁ“”
A R SEER AR E S EERR
z&%%ﬁaﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁ
ZERSBERBEAR BEEERA
A RERIER AR AR BRE
ﬁ&TF%Lﬁiﬁ BERE
ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ- FWH%@W
/NG E&?hQW&EﬂT
@ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%@%-$

SEERAVARLEEERER
HYEHE A RKEERARIRZE

HHEED -

EIHREZEEMRKFRENE R

A« RRERA TR B A RIS
RS RIEAEER - RERIE
TREE - EFHEBH T _M@ARY
W B FRIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS 26.

FOR CONTRACT WORK

Contracts in progress at the end RERREERZ
of the reporting period: EREIE :

Contract costs incurred plus BEEAERKAM L
recognised profits less B 580k AR
recognised losses B R E R

Less: Progress billings B HEE R

Analysed for reporting
purposes as: FEmET S 2T -

Amounts due from

contract customers JEIRE 4R F kT8
Amounts due to
contract customers ENEHREFIE

At 31 December 2012, there was no retentions held
by customers for contract works (2011: nil). Advances
received from customers for contract work amounted to
HK$51,195,000 (2011: HK$52,361,000) included in other
payables and accrued expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
management assessed the recoverable amounts of
the contract costs and determined that costs incurred
for certain long outstanding contracts were impaired.
Accordingly, an impairment loss of HK$3,788,000 (2011:
HK$4,577,000) was recognised.
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EBW(EM)BEFEHNIRE
FIE

2012 2011
—E-C—F —T——4F
HK$’000 HK$000
FETT FET
568,906 584,207
(614,588) (571,223)
(45,682) 12,984
39,761 50,237
(85,443) (37,253)
(45,682) 12,984

BHE-_FT——F+-A=+—81"
EREITENBAHNIRIE(ZE
——F:|)  ERMEFEANT
F2E TR 51,195,000 (—F——
152,361,000 7C) * s AHAM
FERTBR R R ERT RS ©

HE-_Z——F+=-A=+—H1t
FE - EEETHEOKAKAE
WEEEERE  ETHRHEANA
HERE-- At ERRRES
183,788,000 (=T — —F :
4,577,000/ 7T) °
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27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH/PLEDGED

BANK DEPOSITS

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of
three months or less. The bank balances carried interest
at market rates which range from 0.01% to 3.25%
(2011: 0.01% to 3.50%) per annum. At 31 December
2012, the bank balances and cash of approximately
HK$1,103,127,000 (2011: HK$1,104,000,000) are
denominated in RMB which is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

At 31 December 2012, bank and cash balances of
approximately HK$71,488,000, HK$ 12,000, HK$ 1,624,000
and nil (2011: HK$130,300,000, HK$13,470,000,
HK$660,000 and HK$163,000) are denominated in
US$, JPY, HK$ and Euro respectively, which are not
denominated in the functional currency of respective
group entities.

Pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to
banks to secure bank acceptance bills and general banking
facilities granted to the Group and are therefore classified
as current assets. The pledged bank deposits carry interest
at market rates which range from 2.85% to 3.25% per
annum.

At 31 December 2012, the pledged bank deposits of
approximately HK$3,039,000 (2011: nil) are denominated
in RMB which is not freely convertible into other
currencies. The pledged bank deposits of approximately
HK$5,217,000 (2011: nil) is denominated in US$, which is
not denominated in the functional currency of respective
group entities.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

27. BITEHBKREE BEF

RITIF

RITHB IR BERAEEMFR
S RETE=EASAREIEZ EH
RITER o |RITEBRIZNTF0.01%
E£325%(ZZFE——F:001% =
3.50%) MM FEMEFTE - K=
T——_F+_-_fF=+—8 1T
R RIR € A 41,103,127,000 7%
T (ZZF——4F :1,104,000,000 #
T) AAREFHEI A B B 5%
REME o

RZFE—Z—F+=ZHA=+—H"
1T RIS 4 BR# 71,488,000
7T~ 12,000 7T ~ 1,624,000 7T
&k ZE(=ZZ —— 4 130,300,000
¥ 7T ~ 13,470,000 7T * 660,000
7 7T % 163,000 7T ) 9 B A =
7t BE - B RkEUTEHE - Mk
U EE TR ERETE -

EERRTERERLASEERT
WIRITE AL EER—RRITEEM
MERITEANER - B2 EAR
BEE - HPRITHERO ISR
BENTF2.85%E3.25% °

RZFE—ZF+ZHA=+—H"
B IRITF 543,039,000 T
(ZE—F : T)UARKEEE -
TAIEBLBAHMER - BEA
$RITF # #95,217,0008 (=&
—— % T)AETEE - M
NEEEERNINEEETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

28. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE 28. FEHEAR

On 8 December 2011, the directors resolved to dispose
of Inspur E-government, a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Group which engaged in software development
(that forms part of “software development and solution”
segment) to Shandong Inspur Software Co., Ltd. ("I
R BHEBEERMNBMRAR"), a fellow subsidiary of
the Company. On 18 January 2012, the Group entered
into a sales and purchase agreement, pursuant to which
the Group has conditionally agreed to dispose of Inspur
E-government (“the Disposal’’) for a cash consideration
of RMB23,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$28,300,000). The Disposal was completed on 19
January 2012 and details are set out in note 36.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

28. DISPOSAL GROUP HELD FOR SALE (continued) ~ 28.

The major classes of assets and liabilities of Inspur
E-government classified as held for sale as at 31 December

2011 were as follows:

Goodwill

Property, plant and equipment

Trade receivables

Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables

Amounts due from customers for
contracts works

Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries

Amount due from ultimate
holding company

Bank balances and cash

Total assets classified as held for sale

Trade and bills payables

Other payables, deposits received
and accrued expenses

Taxation payable

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Deferred income - government grant

Total liabilities classified as held for sale

BELEHR (&)

—ET——Ft=A=1—0 8#
BFRBHAERABEIESHA

FELE - WTATR -

HE
W BE RS
& 5 IR
BTHE - B R
1 IR R 3K

R EF A #H TRNA
& 45 [F) &= I Y /B8 2 R 3K IR

RSl UNCIE/SE]
RITEH LIRS

DERFELEEERR

B 5 RNEREENRE

HEMER - Blike METRE
FEEIHIA

eI [R5 B ff BB 2 B 508
EIEWA — BT F B

DRARIEHERERR

31.12.2011
—g——%
+t=A=t—H
HK$'000
FET

2,457
637
3,507

3,644

485
41,384

124
7,865

60,103

(16,471)

(9,770)
(1,692)
(2,631)
(1,099)

(31,663)
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER 29.
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trade and bills payables, other payables, deposits received
and accrued expenses principally comprise amounts
outstanding for trade purposes and ongoing costs. The
average credit period taken for trade purchases is 30 to
120 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade and bills payables
for the purchase of goods and services received presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis includes those classified as part of a
disposal group held for sale as at 31 December 2011.

Trade and bills payables B O RNERRENZE
0 - 30 days 0Z30H
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H KA £

Included in other payables and accrued expenses are
miscellaneous tax payable of HK$18,390,000 (2011:
HK$20,119,000) and salaries and bonus payable of
HK$79,614,000 (2011: HK$55,308,000).
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2012 2011
—F—-F —TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
145,579 110,842
8,169 16,383
7,336 11,305
31,192 39,100
192,276 177,630
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER 29. EFENRRARENEZRE

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued) UREMRBERE E (5
2012 2011
—E-—F —T——%F
HK$000 HK$ 000
FET FET
Amounts due to related companies: FENTRAE A RIFUA -
Trading in nature 2oME
Fellow subsidiaries EESEN N =ING 25,959 18,533
Ultimate holding company BRI A A 22 2
25,981 18,535
Non-trading in nature FEHHE
Fellow subsidiaries EESEN NG 926 1,213
Ultimate holding company B ARPERR A R 3,199 4,785
Non-controlling interest of a subsidiary ~ Ff/& A A& FFIE A 2S — 3,177
4,125 9,175
Total amounts due to related companies  J& {5 B#sE A 7 A 4B 5 30,106 27,710
Analysed as: ERA BB ;
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries SIS
M~ R IE 26,885 19,746
Amount due to ultimate
holding company JERT R AR IR A RIFIB 3,221 4,787
Amount due to non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary JEST B B A 7 — 3,177
Total amounts due to related companies P RAE A R FIAAREE 30,106 27,710
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

29. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES AND OTHER 29. EFENRRARENSNEZE

CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

The average credit period taken for trade purchases from
related companies is 30 to 120 days. The following is an
aged analysis of the amounts due to related companies
which are trading in nature at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis includes those amounts due to related
companies which are trading in nature classified as part of
a disposal group held for sale as at 31 December 2011.

UREMRBEHMEEE)

KEBBARNEZRETFHEE
HR30E120H - BESHEZ
FENBZERRIZUARZ2HREER
MEREE DTN T - DM BRER_-F
—— &+ -A=+—HEBEZILE
DRERFHELEER — oM E
NEERRIFRIA

0 to 30 days 0&30H

31 to 60 days 31260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90 HIA E

2012 2011
—E-—C—F —E——F
HKS$'000 HK$000
FET FET
20,268 14,333
3,382 246

531 1,440

1,800 5,147
25,981 21,166

The amounts due to fellow subsidiaries, ultimate holding
company and non-controlling interest of a subsidiary which
are non-trading in nature are unsecured, interest free and
repayable on demand.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY 30. AT KRA
Number of
Notes shares
B 5 BHEE
‘000 HK$ 000
FHE FETT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.002 each ~ &f%0.002/& 7T
2l
Authorised: JERE
At 1 January 2011, R-TE——%F
31 December 2011 —H—H"
and 31 December 2012 —E——4F
+=-—A=+—8H
N—_ZT——F
+—-A=+—H 10,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE :
At 1 January 2011 RZE——%F
—H—H 3,791,567 7,583
Conversion of redeemable Rl BE 08 St %
preferred shares i 415,873 832
At 31 December 2011 RZT——%F
+-A=+—H 4,207,440 8,415
Exercise of share options 1TERE AR HE i 20,000 40
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+-A=+—H 4,227,440 8,455
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

Ntotes:

(i) On 1 November 2011, the holder of redeemable converted
preferred shares converted 83,174,600 redeemable
converted preferred shares into 415,873,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.002 each in the Company at a conversion
price of 0.152 per share.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2012, 20,000,000
share options were exercised at the exercise price of
HK$0.0648 per share. Details of options outstanding and
movement during the year are set out in note 31.

All the shares which were issued during both years rank
pari passu with the then existing shares in all respects.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Equity-settled share options scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Scheme”)
and Share Option Scheme (the “Option Scheme”) of the
Company were adopted by the Company pursuant to the
written resolutions of all shareholders passed on 8 April
2004 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to selected participants for their contribution
to the Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and
retain high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest. The Pre-IPO Scheme
and the Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of ten years after the date of its adoption. Under
the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Option Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company may grant options to eligible
participants including employees, executives or officers
and directors (including executive and non-executive
directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, consultants and advisers who will contribute
or have contributed to the Group to subscribe for shares in
the Company.

At 31 December 2012, the number of shares available for
issue and remained outstanding under the Pre-IPO Scheme
and the Option Scheme are nil shares (2011: 20,000,000
shares) and 60,100,000 shares (2011: 60,100,000 shares)
respectively representing 0% (2011: 0.48%) and 1.42%
(2011: 1.43%) of the issued share capital of the Company
respectively.

31.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
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ARFPRBZEEERR —_TTMF
MANBBENERRERRANE
RAFHBRB AT BT & ([ BR R
B FR R A R AR AT 81 |) Mo BE At =t
S(TBEEE])  TBRNA/M
REEZ2HEERREHAEEZ
BRIRHERSE®R - & KB
AEERENGEEESREE - Rl
HAREE MK BRI REN
EREEREBEHIANER -BHRXR
INGECEIE e R S By
SIREMNE BEFT TFRRBRT
&£ o RIFE X QG AAT RS
SILBRERE  ARRESEH
AeEER2RE(BREARRRA
EFMBARIZER - THRAE -
BRBE RHITRIFMTES AR
BEXARGAEEE R 2 EM
HER  BREBRA)RDAR
BARR AR BB R HE -

R-ZZE——F+-A=+—H8 " 18
BEXARBRATERET S B
B RE T B ] (L 3E1T I M AR 1T AU AR
HDEEDRAZER(ZT——F :
20,000,000 ) 60,100,000 f%
— =& ——1%:60,100,000 % ) *
DREERARAFTEBEITRA0%
—E——%F:048%) & 1.42%
(ZB——F 1 1.43%) °
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BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRETTE(®)

Equity-settled share options scheme
(continued)

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under each of the Pre-IPO Scheme and
the Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company of the adoption date of the Pre-
IPO Scheme and the Option Scheme unless prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders in general meeting
has been obtained. The number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company must not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The total number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted to any eligible participant
in any twelve-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any point in time,
unless prior approval from the Company’s shareholders
in general meeting has been obtained. Options granted
to substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company in excess of 0.1% of
the Company’s share in issue and with a value in excess
of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by the
Company'’s shareholders in general meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Equity-settled share options scheme
(continued)

There is no general requirement that an option must be
held to any minimum period before it can be exercised
but the board of directors is empowered to impose at its
discretion any such minimum period at the time of grant
of any particular option. Options offered must be taken
up not later than 28 days after the date of offer. A non-
refundable remittance of HK$1 is payable as consideration
by the grantee upon acceptance of every grant of option
under the Pre-IPO Scheme and the Option Scheme. The
period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors at its absolute
discretion, save that such period of time shall not exceed
a period of ten years commencing on the date which the
option is granted. The exercise price is determined by the
board of directors of the Company, and will not be less
than the highest of (i) the closing price of the share on the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer
(i) the average closing price of the shares on the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer and (iii) the
nominal value of a share of the Company.

On 8 April 2004, a total of 40,000,000 share options were
granted to certain employees and directors of the Group
under the Pre-IPO Scheme entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.324 per share.

On 28 December 2004, a total of 40,000,000 share
options were granted to certain employees of the Group
under the Option Scheme entitling the holders thereof to
subscribe for shares of the Company at an exercise price of
HK$0.28 per share.

31.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31. BRETTE(®)

Equity-settled share options scheme
(continued)

On 30 January 2007, a total of 51,430,000 share options
were granted to certain employees and directors of the
Group under the Option Scheme entitling the holders
thereof to subscribe for shares of the Company at an
exercise price of HK$0.56 per share.

The share option granted at 28 December 2004 and 30
January 2007 were fully exercised during the year ended
31 December 2009.

On 10 December 2010, a total of 60,100,000 share
options were granted to certain employees and directors
of the Group under the option scheme entitling the
holders thereof to subscribe for shares of the Company
at an exercise price of HK$0.682 per share. The estimated
fair value of the options granted on 10 December 2010
was approximately HK$22,624,000.

The share options granted at 8 April 2004 do not have any
vesting conditions and were fully vested on the grant date.

40% of the share options granted at 10 December
2010 are exercisable at date of grant; 40% of the share
options are exercisable after 1 year from date of grant; the
remaining 20% of the share option are exercisable after 2
years from the date of grant. All options are vested on the
first day of respective exercise period.
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 31.

Equity-settled share options scheme

(continued)

Details of specific categories of options as at 31 December

2012 are as follows:

Pre-IPO Scheme
EVNNGEE ]
HERRtERT &

Option Scheme
B S

Date of grant

Exercise period

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

BRESTE )

R s A BB AR A 5T 8l ()
LWTAEERBREN-T——F
ToA=+—AZHE:

Exercise price

REHBEH 1T E] TEE

HK$

BT

8 April 2004 8 April 2004 to 7 April 2014 0.0648

—EZPFIANH “EFPNFPMANEE (note)
—ZE—Fm™A+H (BF5E)

10 December 2010 10 December 2010 to 0.682

—T-TF+=-A+tH

9 December 2020
—T-TF+—A+HZE
—T-=F+=-BAH

The following table discloses details of the Company’s

share options held by directors and employees and
movements in such holdings during the year ended 31

December 2012:

Option type
BB R

Pre-IPO Scheme
Option Scheme

Weighted average
Exercise price (HK$)

Outstanding at

e

BE_Z2——F+-_A=+—H1t

FE EFNEEMBAAFER
AR TRKE :

1.1.2011 and
31.12.2011 Outstanding
RZT——%F at
—H—H Exercise 31.12.2012
RZT——%F during R=Z—=F
+=-—A=t+—8 theyear +=HA=+—H
ARTTHE FAITE 8 RATE
AR A FARAT AT & 20,000,000 (20,000,000) —
AR B 60,100,000 — 60,100,000
80,100,000 (20,000,000) 60,100,000
IRETFI91TRE (BT) 0.528 0.0648 0.682

The number of share options exercisable at the end of
reporting period was 60,100,000 (2011: 68,080,000).

RERPEE BAITE 2 BAER

B /60,100,000 (=T ——4 :

68,080,000 1) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

31.

Equity-settled share options scheme

(continued)

Details of the share options held by the directors included
in the above table are as follows:

Option type
BRERR

Pre-IPO Scheme
Option Scheme

Outstanding at

BRETE ()
IR S BB AR ST &l ()

FRATEEFAFEBREN IS
T

1.1.2011 and
31.12.2011 Outstanding
R=-F——%F at
—H—H Exercise 31.12.2012
E=F——F during R=B—=F
+-A=+—8 theyear +=A=+—H
RARITEE FRTTRE 8 RATRE
EPNGEE Gk S 20,000,000 (20,000,000) —
PR T 2l 11,600,000 — 11,600,000
31,600,000 (20,000,000) 11,600,000

Note: The number and the exercise price of options in Pre-IPO
scheme which remained outstanding have been adjusted
due to share subdivision of the Company with effect from
14 December 2007. Each option was subdivided into 5
new share options with exercise price of one fifth of the

original exercise price.

Fair value of share options granted to employees

determined at the date of grant is expensed over the

vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to the

Group’s share option reserve. For the year ended 31

December 2012, an amount of share option expense of
approximately HK$2,139,000 (2011: HK$10,786,000)
has been recognised with a corresponding adjustment

recognised in the Group’s share option reserve.
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32.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

DEFERRED INCOME - GOVERNMENT
GRANT

Subsidiaries of the Company receive grants from the
Government for funding of some development projects
which benefits the society as a whole. When the project
is completed, the relevant Government department will
evaluate the quality of the results. The grants received
are recognised as income when the related development
projects have been completed and the approval of the
relevant Government authority has been obtained.

The current portion of the deferred income - government
grant represented grants received related to projects
expected to be completed within one year from the end of
the reporting period.

REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES

The Company issued 132,964,342 and 101,315,217 6%
redeemable convertible preferred shares (the “Preferred
Shares”) at a par value of HK$0.76 and HK$0.92 each
on 8 December 2005 and 21 April 2006 respectively. The
Preferred Shares are denominated in HKD. The holder of
the Preferred Shares shall have the right to convert the
Preferred Shares, at any time from the date of allotment
of the Preferred Shares and up to the maturity date, which
is the sixth anniversary of 8 December 2005 and without
payment of any additional consideration at the conversion
rate of one Preferred Share to five ordinary shares after
share subdivision completed on 14 December 2007. If
the Preferred Shares have not been converted, they will
be redeemed on 8 December 2011 at par. Interest of 6%
will be paid annually up until the settlement date. The
details of terms of the Preferred Shares are set out in the
Company's circular dated 28 October 2005.

The Preferred Shares contain two components, liability
and equity. Upon the application of HKAS 32 “Financial
instruments: Disclosure and presentation”, the proceeds
from issue of the Preferred Share have been allocated
between the liability and equity elements. The equity
element is pursuant in equity heading “Preferred shares
equity reserve”.

32.

33.
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Bt 355 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BEZZ—

“E+-RA=+—RHItFE

33. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED

SHARES (continued)

On 24 September 2009, the Company entered into a
supplemental deed with the holder of Preferred Shares
(the “Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant to the Supplemental
Deed, the Company and the holder of Preferred Shares
have mutually agreed that the interest of 6% for the
period from 1 October 2009 to 30 September 2011 shall
be paid on quarterly basis (i) as to one third thereof (i.e.
representing 2% per annum) by cash; and (i) as to two-
thirds thereof (i.e. representing 4% per annum) by the
allotment of further Preferred Shares (“Scrip Dividend”) in
such number to be calculated by dividing the amount of
such Scrip Dividend with the amount of the Scrip Dividend
issue price. The Scrip Dividend issue price is determined to
be equal to 100% of the average closing price of ordinary
shares as shown on the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange for the 10 consecutive trading days immediately
prior to such dividend payment date. If the Scrip Dividend
issue price is determined to be less than HK$0.40, no Scrip
Dividend will be issued and the relevant interest shall be
paid by cash. Each Scrip Dividend is entitled to convert one
ordinary share. Except for the number of ordinary share
available for conversion, all other terms of Scrip Dividend
are the same as Preferred Shares. Details of the terms of
Scrip Dividend issued to the holder of the Preferred Shares
are set out in the Company’s circular dated 15 October
2009.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, total of
4,178,447 Scrip Dividend shares with principal amount of
HK$2,018,000 were issued. The Scrip Dividend contains
two components, liability and embedded conversion
option. The fair values of embedded conversion option at
the date of issuance and the end of the reporting period
were insignificant.
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33. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED

SHARES (continued)

On 31 October 2011, the Company further entered into
a supplemental deed with the holder of Preferred Shares
(the “New Supplemental Deed”). Pursuant to the New
Supplemental Deed, the terms of the Preferred Shares,
including Scrip Dividend but excluding those Preferred
Shares to be converted and redeemed will be amended as
follows:

(@) The maturity date of the Preferred Shares shall be
extended for a further period of two years from 8
December 2011 (“Extended Maturity Period”);

(b) The rate of interest during the Extended Maturity
Period will be increased from 6% to 9% per annum;
and

(©) The interest during Extended Maturity Period shall
only be paid by cash.

Except for above, all other terms of Preferred Shares
including the conversion price remain the same.

Details of the modification of the terms of Preferred Shares
are set out in the Company's circular dated 14 November
2011. The modification of the terms was considered to
be a replacement of Preferred Shares, including Script
Dividend, with new Preferred Shares (“New Preferred
Shares”) at the date of maturity.

The New Preferred Shares contains two components,
liability and embedded conversion option.

On 1 November 2011, the Company issued 415,873,000
ordinary shares of the Company upon the conversion of
83,174,600 Preferred Shares with par value of HK$0.76.

On 8 December 2011, the holder of Preferred Shares
redeemed 49,789,742 and 45,266,944 Preferred Shares
with par value of HK$0.76 and HK$0.92 respectively.

33.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

33. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 33. ATEEARKRE LR
SHARES (continued)
The movement of the liability component of the Preferred RBE-_T——F+=-H=+—H
Shares for the year ended 31 December 2011 was set out IEFE - BERABESRD 2B EH
below: FEAR :
2011
—ET——F
HK$ 000
TET
Carrying amount at the beginning FH 2 REE
of the year 201,400
Interest charge FES 15,029
Coupon interest paid for the year FRENZEEAHNE (10,211)
Conversion of redeemable H MR E [B] AT AR B SR AR
convertible preferred shares (63,213)
Redemption of redeemable f& [0 A] 8 2] A #2 AR 4B ST AR
convertible preferred shares (79,486)
Derecognition upon replacement Bl 3% 28 ST AR ER A
by New Preferred Shares (63,519)
The weighted average effective interest rate of the liability BERAERD 2 NEFHERA
component of Preferred Shares was 7.97%. K 57.97% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

33. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED 33. ATEE AR E LK@
SHARES (continued)
The movement of the liability component and conversion FRFEBERBE D HERIREDT
option derivative of the New Preferred Shares for the year ST ENEBHEINNT

is set out below:

Conversion
option
Liability derivatives
component B
=iy PTHETR
HK$'000 HK$ 000
T#ET TET
At 1 January 2011 —_T——%F—H—H — —
Replacement of Preferred Shares R E LR 63,519 9,600
At 31 December 2011 —T——F
+=A=+—H 63,519 9,600
Interest charge MEXZ 6,101 —
Coupon interest paid for the year FRNENE®EFE (4,659) —
Loss arising on changes of fair value ANTEEHELEZEER — 21,257
At 31 December 2012 R-ZE—Z%F
+=-A=+—H 64,961 30,857
The weighted average effective interest rate of the liability MEEREERD 2 METHER
component of New Preferred Shares is 9% (2011: 9%). MEEI%(ZT——4F :9%) °
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

33. REDEEMABLE CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED
SHARES (continued)

The fair value of conversion option derivatives at the date
of replacement and the end of the reporting period were
calculated using the binominal model. The inputs into the
model were as follows:

8.12.2011

—T—F

+=ANH

Share Price IR E HK$0.22/8 7T
Expected life of options BB A% A FEAH 4 2 yearstF
Expected volatility (Note) ¥& &) i@ ( Fff 5% ) 34.535%
Expected dividend yield FEHARZ B & 6.639%
Interest rate F= 6.59%

Note: Expected volatility was determined by using the historical
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous

years.
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e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

34. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 34, EEFIBEAE
The following is the deferred tax liabilities recognised and UTARAREFERBERS
movements thereon during the current and prior reporting EEBRBZELEHRBEEENREE
years: &
Withholding
tax arising Other
from PRC intangible
subsidiaries assets Total
FEME A A
WM HtEREE FE
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
FEIT FET FET
At 1 January 2011 —E——F—H—H 12,395 12,457 24,852
Exchange adjustments  [& & 8% (18) 167 149
Charge (credit) to W GGEA)BRR
profit or loss (note 10)  (FizE 10) 1,471 (3,804) (2,333)
At 31 December 2011 —Z——4
+=—A=+—8H 13,848 8,820 22,668
Exchange adjustments & i F§%& (1) 17 16
Credit to profit FFAEZEEK(MHEE10)
or loss (note 10) 12 (3,556) (3,544)
At 31 December 2012 —Z——4
+=-—A=+—H 13,859 5,281 19,140
Note: Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed MicE : BIBPECEMSTRE B=

on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. No deferred
taxation has been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of certain PRC subsidiaries
amounting to approximately HK$302,736,000 (2011:
HK$324,382,000) as the Company controls the dividend
policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that the
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

ST )\E— F— B #EYFHEEH
BARMAEZFERMEE
BURTER T o R AR Bl
=T BB AR MRS BUR
BZEMBRARKEFERR
R ATEER & DIk - MR 48R
eV BREMEBRE THE
B BB A B Kk 9 Ik i | 2 BT B =
%8 #9302,736,000/8 T(= &
——4F :324,382,000/8 7T )E
IR E R TR A -
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BHEZ

35.

36.

Z——Ft+ZRA=1+—HItFE

ACQUISITION OF PARTIAL INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group
acquired the remaining 30% interests of |LE RS RIE
B EHZAR AT (“Inspur Financial System”) from the other
shareholder for a cash consideration of RMB1,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,843,000)
("Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 5 April
2012.

The Acquisition, without changing the Group’s control
over Inspur Financial System, was accounted for as equity
transaction. The difference between the fair value of cash
consideration of HK$1,843,000 and 30% of share of net
liabilities by other shareholder of HK$791,000 amounting
to HK$2,634,000 was recognised directly in equity as other
reserves and attributable to owners of the Company.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

As referred to in note 28, the Group disposed of its
subsidiary, Inspur E-government. The net assets of Inspur
E-government at the date of disposal were as follows:

2 WA E :
BEWHR £

Consideration received:
Cash received
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35.

36.

g ) WNCieA = B £

REE-_ZTE——F+-_A=+—H
IEFE - AEEREMRRUKEL
BRESMEERFBRAB(R
HMEBMESRDHBRT30% ER
ReKERARKI5000007T
(FBE R4 1,843,000 7T) ([ W
FIH]) ZWHEBEER_T—_F
MMARHBETEK -

ZWEBEEBEYENERAERER
HMEeRESRRONESIE &R
R ZH AN - ;&K (E 1,843,000
BTHEMBRRELI0%NEE
FRT791,0008 TR A FEEZR
2,634,000 7T - HEERERTE
REEMRETFBRARRES
}\ °

HE—RHEAF
SO RE 28 AL - AN R I A

BRARIRNEFB - RAEFE
BREEEHNEEFEWT

HK$ 000
FET

28,343
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36. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over
which control was lost:
Goodwill
Property, plant and equipment
Trade and bills receivables
Prepayments, deposits and
other receivables
Amounts due from customers
for contracts works
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries
Amount due from ultimate
holding company
Amount due from the Group
Bank balances and cash
Trade and bills payables
Other payables and accrued liabilities
Taxation payable
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries
Amount due to the Group
Deferred income - government grant

Net assets disposal of

Loss on disposal of a subsidiary:
Consideration received
Net assets disposed of

Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Cash consideration
Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 31
December 2012 did not have any significant contribution
to the results and cash flows of the Group during the

period prior to the disposal.

BAEHENEE
REE2HH

mE

ME - BB KRB

B RMERR R B R

BNFRIE - ZE2 Rk
HoAth & W AR K

RWEFP A TIEFA

& 45 [F) 5= [ Ff /&8 2 R 3R IR
e B A A5 B R R IR

JE W AN 5% [ 5R0R
RITEBRNMIRE

B HRNERRENER
Hi e R MR B E
P BEIR

FE I [ &= I FfY /8 & Bl 3R IR
AR BFIR

IEFE W — TR T 466 B

EHEEERE

HE-RWBLATZER :
B UEHA(E
BHEEEFE

HEELEZRERAFE
RN E

W BEHERITERLRE

N
-+

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

36. HE—XKEBLQAT (&)

19.1.2012
—E—CfF
—At+hA

HK$'000
FHET

2,457
637
3,507

3,644

485
41,384

124
771
7,865
(16,471)
(9,770)
(1,692)
(2,631)
(149)
(1,099)

29,062

28,343
(29,062)

(719)

28,343
(7,865)

20,478

AIEAA  REE T ——F
=t+—BHIEEELENE
DAV KRB ANEBRHEERIRES R

EHEMERNER °
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 37. REBEFRE

REBRPEER - *AEEREBRLE
HERAENERKRFERE 2%
ERRIHMBERAT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
operating leases in respect of rented premises which fall

due as follows:

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals

are fixed for an average of two years.

38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure in respect of
the construction of
property contracted
for but not provided in
the consolidated
financial statements

Capital expenditure in respect
of the construction of property
authorised but not contracted for

2012 2011

—E——fF —T——%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEr

—FNRN 2,360 4,220
F_EZFERF

(BREEEMTE) 63 1,274

2,423 5,494

REHEHEEAEERNBAE
FETIEEHES HEFHEMF
B —R - MEE FEMFEETE —

2011
—F——F
HK$'000
FET

R e
38. EAXEIE
2012
—E—_F
HKS$’000
FHT
MERWED
BESIEICESS
IREMIERENR
HRZ EARY
502,485
MERWED
RIEB®ARETH
ZERRAL 173,520
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39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Company’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong operates the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme under the rules and
regulations of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority. The Group’s employees are required to join the
scheme. The Group has followed the minimum statutory
contribution requirement of 5% of eligible employees’
relevant aggregated income with a cap of HK$1,250
per employee per month since 1 June 2012 (previously
HK$1,000 per employee per month).

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC, in compliance
with the applicable regulations of the PRC, participated in
various central pension schemes operated by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments. These subsidiaries
are required to make defined contributions to these
schemes at a fixed percentage of their covered payroll.
The Group has no other obligation for the payment of its
staff's retirement and other post-retirement benefits other
than the contributions described above.

The total contributions in respect of the current accounting
period charged to consolidated income statement
amounting to HK$54,161,000 (2011: HK$39,045,000).

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

39. RIRBRIFTE

A RIH B SHE A 7R K 5R Hil 1%
NECFTEIEEROBRR KR EH
TR AEESEE c AREET
HAESMLEE - REEEREE
EREHEFREEEEREEEN
BWARHS% MK BZE—ZF
ANA—BRLBRAEESREEESA
12508 L(BERBHEESA
1,000 7T) °

AETHEERRA - ARAFFE
MBARHESEZAHRBRE MR
&8 2 hRBEREEE - ZFM
BARIAR L EITREFH T <
B B 2 A% Fat 8lfE e R
Koo B bt ftRsh  AEEY EHE
32 B TR R B AR IR 2 F
MBI

RogesrHMasa WE R MK
ZHAE A 54,161,000 (==
——%F : 39,045,000 7T) °

189 / REEBRERAH /:g—:fﬁgfﬁ%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/ 40. BEALTR B #tk
BALANCES
Apart from the amounts due from and to related parties as BRFI5E 25 & 29 75 Bl 45 55 1 FE W K2
disclosed in notes 25 and 29 respectively, the Group had FE B AN TFRIESN - REERAK
entered into the following related party transactions during FEEETMIBEALRS
the year:
Ultimate Immediate Fellow
holding company holding company subsidiaries
BRERAR EEZRAR EREHEAR
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011

=%-f ~T—45 Z%-=f ~“T 45 Z=B-=fF ~“T %
HKS00  HKSO00 — HKS00  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000
TET THET FET THET FET THT

Sales of goods HEEm 6,091 185,146 344,949 332,369 201,764 122,304
Services income  FRFEIA 9,865 23,349 — — 63,371 77,905
Purchase of goods & & @ 1,304 8 — 51 95,611 124,491

Sales commission
expenses HEREY W 120 225 = = 1,719 1,503

Property rental

expenses MEREHL 9,465 11,602 — - — 330
Note: Subsequent to the transfer of the Company's shares Bisr : RADF B RR G EE TR e
to Inspur Overseas, the transactions with the former HME - BT E RGN B
immediate holding company, Inspur Electronics (HK) Limited BEF(EB)ERATETHY
were grouped under “Fellow Subsidiaries”. X SEBENEEEHEL
CIEDANE
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40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

(0

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group disposed of an intangible asset to other
shareholder with significant influence of Inpur
Financial System, a subsidiary of the Company, at
cash consideration of RMB4,600,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5,656,000). The Group also
acquired a leasehold land from the ultimate holding
company at cash consideration of RMB32,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$39,327,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Group disposed of Inspur E-Government, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group to Shandong Inspur
Software, a fellow subsidiary of the Company for a
cash consideration of RMB23,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$28,343,000). Details of the
disposal are set out in notes 28 and 36.

On 25 November 2011, the Group entered
into a joint venture agreement with two fellow
subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to which a
jointly controlled entity would be established in the
PRC with a registered capital of RMB300,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$367,950,000).
The Group was committed to contribute
RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$122,175,000) in accordance with the share of
proportion of the jointly controlled entity. The jointly
controlled entity has been established during the
year ended 31 December 2011.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, certain
rental agreement in respect of office premises and
staff quarters were under operating leases signed
between ultimate holding company and the relevant
landlords and the relevant operating lease rentals
in respect of these leases recognised in the Group’s
profit and loss amounted to HK$9,695,000 (2011:
HK$6,731,000) .

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

40. BEANTRE &85

(a)

(b)

REEZE_F——F+=A
=+—HIEFEE  AEEMN
R & R E AR4600,000
TL(HE & % 45,656,000
TR EAMRE T E —BHE
WEE HARFZHEBEA
ARMERMERELEETEAY
. REENARKKLIERD
BINEBHEE L BERE
A A K #32,000,000 7T (48
B R4939,327,00087T) ©

REBEE-_ZFT——F+_-A8
Z+—BLEFEE  A£EEH
REBRNZENEB R RRE
BEFBRBELEFTARRNME
EEWNBARLERBE
EHE HaeREAAR
# 23,000,000 7C(#E & R 4
28,343,000 5T ) ° i & &
BEERHIE28 236 °

—E——%+—-—A=-+H
H' AEEHEKXRQ A MM
BEEMBARGTLAEE
tEHZ BRFPBEKL
—HHERZEHER: T
& A& A& AR #300,000,000
JTo(#) % 367,950,000
TL) o AR BEBBRBEAG
HRAZEFIEELEINEEAR
# 100,000,000 T(#) & R
122,175,000 7T ) » H[F 2
HEBEREE_T—F
+-—A=t—BIEFERIT -

REBEE-_FT——F+_A4
Z+—BLEFEE BRE
BIBEZATHERZED
NEREIERAFBE@EEE
BRI 2SO MA
BAZEEASEBERERM
BamBsEEcERNEeE
9,695,000/ jt(= & — —
£ 1 6,731,000/87T) °
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012

BHEZ

Z——Ft+ZRA=1+—HItFE

40. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS/

41.

BALANCES (continued)

Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of directors during the year are set
out in note 12, which is determined by the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the holder
of redeemable converted preferred shares converted
83,174,600 redeemable converted preferred shares with
the par value of HK$63,213,000 into ordinary shares.
Details are set out in note 33.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, coupon interest
amounting to HK$2,018,000 was settled by issue of Scrip
Dividend. Details are set out in note 33.
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42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at
31 December 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

Place of
Form of incorporation/
Name of company ~ business structure  registration
ARER HRERTS L/ Bies
Inspur Electronics Incorporated Britsh Virgin
Limied A AR Klands (‘3V1°)
REETRRAA KERAES
([REEE])
Inspur (HK) Incorporated Hong Kong
BectronicsLimited B AR i
R (B%) 8T
RRAT
Inspur Shandong Wholly foreign PRC
Hectronic ownedenterpises 2
RALRET (*WFOE')
JiERRER
([EEaLR] )
Intersource Technology — Incorporated Bl
Incomporated Limited SR AE RAEE

(lass of Paid up issued ordinary
share held share capital/registered capital
FERARH HRERTERRS/EMEA
2012 011
= 2= g S

Ordinary Usst Us§t
Fk 1%7 [E3p
Ordinary HKS1,000,000  HK$1,000,000
RER 10000007 100000077t
Capital contrbution ~ US$90,675,000  US$90,675,000
i WFT5005T 906750005
Ordinary USS50,000  US$50,000
RER SO00ET  S0000ET

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-T——F+-A=+—HLFE

£ —=

42. ARREEMBRRFE

ARRIEEMBARINR_-FT——F
E=F——F+ZA=+—HKH
fEmT

Proportion of interest
held by the Company
KiFfEEERAY
01
28-%
DirectlyEE  Indirectly i

Prinipal activities
3£
2011
= Tﬁ*ﬁ
DiectyER  Indirectllsk

100% - 100% —  Investment holding

AR

- 100% 100%  Trading of computer
components

EEE] g

- 100% 100%  Investment holding
and manufacture,
trading of

computer products
RERRREES

BREkER
0% -

100% —  Investment holding

REAR

183 / REEBRERAH /:g—:fﬁgfﬁ%
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ARE ISR M A

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of
Form of incorporation/
Name of company  business structure ~ registration
ARER BRERYA iR/ BRsd
Timeone Technology  Incorporated BVl
Limited AT RAES
Shine Victory Incorporated Hong Kong
Intemational Limted ~ AL AR &k
= EO
Jinan Qiyi Information ~ SFOE PRC
Technology Limited# A ELE e
BENAREHR
ERARY
Jinan Communication ~ Domesticlimited ~ PRC
o labiitycompany 98
('DLLC")
RERRREAT
([WARRAE
2l )
Inspur Communication ~ SFOE PRC
Rt mhaERR e
Inspur Business System  DLLC PRC

RARRZG RERRERAT o

Langchao Worldwide  Incorporated Cayman lslands

RELH AT FEEE

Class of
share held
BRRAEH

Ordinary
il

e

Ordinary
Fk

Capital contribution
i

Capital contribution
H&

Capital contribution
HR

Capital contribution

i

Ordinary

Paid up issued ordinary
share capital/registered capital

BREfERRA /MR

012
“E-CF

Us$50,000
5000057

HKS8,979,000
8,979,007

RBS,000,000
ARY
50000007

RMB30,000,000
ARY
500000007

RMB30,000,000
ARY
50,000,0007%

RMB20,000,000
AR
20,000,007

US$5,072,000
50,00£7
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01
I—-%

Us$50,000
000057

HK$8,979,000
8,979 0007

RMB5,000,000
AR
5,000,0007¢

RIB50,000,000
N
50,000,0007¢

RIBS0,000,000
AR
50,000,0007¢

RMB20,000,000
A%
20,000,007

US§5,072,000
5072000572

42. ARAREEM B D TFIE

(#8)

Proportion of interest

held by the Company
KOAfRRRZAM
012 2011
o B -k

DirectlyERE Indirecty®if DirecthE%  Indrecti
- 100% - 100%
100% - 100% -
- 100% - 100%
- 100% = 100%
- 100% - 100%
- 100% - 100%
100% - 100% -

Principal actvities

Edt

Investment holding
REER

Ivestment holding
[REAR

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
RRAR

Manufacturing, sale
and development of
computer software
28 HERFE
i

Software
development
it

Investment holdings

REER
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Place of
Form of incorporation/
Name of company  business structure ~ registration
ARER BRERYA iR/ BRsd
Worldwide Shandong ~ WFOE PRC

ImEaty AR

—

Inspur Genersoft DLL PRC

RAAAR NARRERAR  ME
Inspur Financial System’  DLLC PRC
RECHESEE  WEAREMAR 0

URRHERESHR O
BRAA

-

PRC

URREEEAAES OUC R

BRA NERBEfLR R
Inspur (HK) Cloud ~~~ Incorporated HK
Senicelimited  HRALAT 50
A (&) 2
BRA
EEREBEEHR DUC R
RRA NERREALE  E

(lass of Paid up issued ordinary
share held share capital/registered capital
FERARH BRERAEERL/RRER
2012 201
I i
Capital contrbution ~ US§2,317,300  US§2,317,300
i LM00ET 231730057

Capital contrbution - RMB100,000,000
i AE%
100,000,007

Capital contribution ~ RMB5,000,000
i ARE
5,000,007

Capttal contribution~ RMB18,000,000
i AR
18,000,007

Capital contribution~ RMB35,000,000
b AR
35,000,007

Ordinary HK$10,140
i 1014057

Capital contrbution - RMB100,000,000
it AR%
100,000,007

**  This entity was newly established in 2012.

RIB39,932,000
AER
39,932,000

RIBS,000,000
ARK
50000007

RIB18,000,000
ARE
18,000,007

RIB33,000,000
ARE
33,000,007

HK$10,140
10,407

RIB100,000,000
AR
100,000,000

# The English name of these PRC incorporated entities are for

identification purpose only.

e M WmR M

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T-—F+-A=1+-BIEFE

42. ARREEMBRRFE

(#)

01

“E-CE
DirectlyEE  Indirectly ik

* *

100%** i n

Proportion of interest
held by the Company
KiFfEEE A

Principal actvities

Edt

0
5-f
DiectyER  Indirectllsz

Provision of
outsourcing
software
development
Sevices
RERRFENE
s

100% - 100%

100% - 100%  Software
development

EAEES

100% - 0% Software
development

e

100% - 100%  Software
development

NS

85.7% - 909%  Software
development

i

100% = 100%  Provision of i-Cloud

senvice

RtidoudfR

Not yet commenced
business
RARRIERH
REBN T ——F K -
AR B 2 BRI R &
RE(E AR -
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e MEBRMETE

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE-_T—F+-A=1+—BLEFE

42. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 42. AR T EMB A RIFE

OF THE COMPANY (continued) (&)

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company ERBIARREHE LR - EER
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affect RZEMBRARETEFEAREEF
the results of the Group for the year or form a substantial NEEIBEBRNAEEEERBED
portion of the assets and liabilities of the Group. To give FEEHD  c EFRAIBEEMMNEB
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the RAZHBEHBHATBRILE °
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities BEMBATIRFARFERETE
during the year and at the end of the year. &5 o
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